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STRATEGIC REPORT
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The year ending February 2021 was the most challenging in Nando’s 34-year history. Through the height of the!
Covid-19 pandemic, the majority of our restaurants across the Group were closed. Since then we have}
'successfully operated through a slow and unpredictable recovery with successive lockdowns and re-openings in
all markets, and continued to demonstrate our resilience whilst operating in a period of significant uncertainty. I

Highlights

f
{Financial highlights for the period ending 28 February 2021

'« Revenue down by 39.3% to £665.0m (2020: £1,095.4m) driven by significant periods of restaurant closures and;
‘off premise trading across all our markets.

» Underlying operating loss pre-exceptional items of £132.9m (2020 Profit: £57.4m) driven by the reduction in
:sales despite action to control costs where possible. The loss was driven by the impact of Covid-19 with our fixed
costs not being recovered in the periods our restaurants were closed.

,» Capital investment decreased to £54.2m (2020: £97.4m) as we responded to the trading uncertainty and
‘requirement to conserve cash.

Covid-19

- The pandemic had a significant negative impact on our operations, including the complete closure of all our
‘restaurants in the UK during the first national lockdown. We took rapid and decisive action to protect our:
colleagues and customers and to preserve cash and liquidity to secure the long-term future of the business. As|
previously announced, this included a significant reduction in capex, raising £100m in equity from our parent|
.company in September 2020, salary reductions for senior management, agreed reductions in rent and a pre-
-emptive waiver for our bank covenants.

» We are grateful for the support of governments in our Covid-impacted markets. In the UK, employees were put
‘on furlough during the peak of the pandemic and as a result we were able to avoid any redundancies across our
irestaurants or any permanent restaurant closures.

» The Group moved to cautiously and carefully re-open restaurants, initially for off-premise sales (Collect and
'Delivery) before restarting on-premise dining with social distancing and other measures, to ensure the safety of
'employees and customers.

-While current trading across our international footprint has improved significantly, it remains mixed as we
.continue to navigate the effects of the global pandemic. However, we remain confident in our long-term growth
trajectory, underpinned by continued strong customer demand for our PERI-PERI chicken, a growing range of
innovative new menu items, improved technology and new channels to market through which we can serve our!
customers. This includes an acceleration of our digital strategy, through the formation of an innovative new|
delivery partnership with Deliveroo in the UK, a new “click and collect” digital platform and the ability to order atj
‘table via a Nando’s app, to support social distancing and customer safety. |
[
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[Environmental, social and governance (ESG) highlights

« Across the globe, we have supported our Covid-impacted markets as part of our long-standing commitment to
'be part of the communities in which we operate, donating over 1 million meals to healthcare workers and the|
ineedy across the US, the UK and Australia. As part of these efforts, we donated over 565,000 meals to NHS
workers in the UK, building on our 20 year partnership supporting the NHS and a further 125,000 meals via our
‘partnership with Fareshare and our local No Chuckin’ our Chicken charities.

‘s Our sustainability commitments further accelerated as Nando's UK became the first restaurant group in Europe
‘to adopt approved Science Based Targets to further reduce carbon emissions.
i

i» Nando’s UK also signed the Better Chicken Commitment, pledging to fully implement higher standards of animal
.welfare to ensure stronger healthler chickens in our supply chain by 2026.
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Rob Papps, Group Chief Executive of Nando’'s commented:

“The 2021 financial year was the most challenging in Nando's history as a result of the Covid 19 pandemic.
Against this difficult backdrop, | am incredibly proud of the way Nando’s has responded; with a clear focus on our
people and supporting our communities. | am particularly pleased that we succeeded in avoiding any
redundancies at our UK restaurants and avoiding any permanent closures. Looking ahead, the Nando’s brand
remains very well placed, underpinned by our delicious PERI-PERI chicken, continued menu innovation, our focus
on social impact and our investment in delivery, loyalty and customer technology which is making it easier for
more people to eat Nando's.”

The directors present the Strategic Report, Directors' Report and the audited financial statements for the 53-week
period ended February 2021.

Values and engagement

Nando’s believes its purpose is to change lives. We try to do this through the business — driving social impact by
developing and then, critically, embedding programmes into our everyday operations, specifically people,
communities and supply chain. We believe this enhances our efforts — building programmes sustainably, which
resonate with employees and customers over the long term and activate the business as a force for good in
society.

Our most important resource remains our people. We have articulated the behaviours that support our values of
pride,. passion, courage, integrity and family, and have instilled these into everything we do — our recruitment,
training, development and reward structures.

Nando's launched a food donation and employment program, aimed at helping vulnerable young people and
families across some of our regions, including the UK and the US: ‘

o In the UK, the Fuel Your Future program is designed to make lasting impact for disadvantaged
young people. The program aims to help with both the immediate need for free meals, and most
importantly a long-term impact on the lives of disadvantaged young people, through supporting
their futures with employment opportunities. We have donated 44,000 meals and placed
approximately 100 young people into full time work.

o In the US, as a continuation of our focus on inclusive hiring, we partnered with Generation,
whose mission is to close the skills gap for young people, empowering them to build thriving,
sustainable careers. The partnership centres on recruitment of young people from disadvantaged
backgrounds, who typically would not find their way into the formal job market. Over the year of
our partnership, we have placed approximately 90 young people into full time work.

This philosophy extends to the communities in which we operate:

 The impact of the Covid-19 pandemic has been seen across the world, including in all the markets in which
Nando's operates. As a business with a longstanding commitment to make our restaurants an important part of
every community, Nando’s has continued to use our global teams to help those most in need. We are proud to
have worked hard and served that effort to make a positive impact:

o In North America, Nando’s continued the largest community service program in its history and
donated more 150,000 meals to local hospitals and frontline medical workers. The Standing -
Together, 6 Feet Apart program was part of our commitment to stay open to keep our employees
paid (including anyone with Covid or those that had to quarantine) and support our communities.
We also provided meals to any restaurant workers who had lost their jobs in our local areas, and
more than 30,000 meals to our own employees and their families.

0 Across Australia and New Zealand, we donated over 1 million meals to Foodbank, which
provides relief to needy people each month. We are glad that through this initiative, we continued
to, in partnership with our customers, help those struggling due to the health crisis. In addition, in
Australia specifically, we also donated over 160,000 meals directly to Secondbite, helping us
reach the milestone of over 500k meals since the partnership launched in 2018.

o In the UK, in addition to the No Chuckin’ Our Chicken program, Nando's donated 180,000 free
meals, including 55,000 to frontline NHS workers. '

o Our people have been at the heart of all of these initiatives, and we are immensely proud that
we were able to help essential workers, particularly those on the front lines of healthcare systems
around the world, those in need, and our own people during this difficult time.



» Our No Chuckin’ Our Chicken program is aimed at stopping unnecessary food waste. The program provides
excess food from our restaurants to those who need it most in the communities in which we operate. We are
proud that since its launch in the UK in 2013, Nando’s has reached the milestone of 2.7 million donated meals to
local charities.

-+ Nando's is continuing our work with our PERi Farms in Mozambique, Malawi, Zimbabwe and South Africa,
where we source 100% of our African PERI-PERI chillies and where we make an enormous difference to the lives
of many small-scale farmers through access to the latest farming techniques, quality seedlings and finance. Since
the launch of the program in 2015, we are now working with c. 1,100 farmers across 12 regions, supporting all
Nando’'s markets. We provide the farmers with a fixed outlay for their crop and pay a premium for every kilogram
of chillies harvested. Nando's is also building education, experience and innovation across these regions,
investing in people to broaden their farming capabilities. The initiative is being extended to cover more ingredients
and across a wider geography, and our initial trials with cayenne pepper and paprika have been successful.

« Our Portal to Africa initiative was established in 2012 and digitally connects our global restaurant network to
small, emerging Southern African artisans, furniture makers and crafts people. It was created to support South
African design and furniture-making industries by showcasing South African designers on a purpose made portal.
The portal helps young designers set up and grow their ideas and business and is accessible by all our
restaurants, which can commission specific works. Having been designed from scratch, the impact has been
significant, with over 60 designers featuring on the portal at year end. We also continue to source new talent
through the ‘Hot Young Designer’ platform and industry days.

» We're stepping up our efforts on the climate crisis:
« Nando's aims to be carbon neutral by November 2021.
» Nando's UK is the first restaurant group in Europe with an approved Science Based Target,
which are targets that are in line with the latest climate science outlining what is necessary to
meet the goals of the Paris Agreement. We are committed to achieving these targets by an
absolute reduction in emissions, as opposed to carbon offsetting. Since 2015, we've already
successfully reduced the carbon footprint of the average Nando’s meal by 40%.
« We're really proud of our Net Zero by 2030 target and know the hard work it needs:
o Nando’s has committed to achieving absolute zero direct carbon emissions;
o Further reducing the carbon footprint of an average Nando’s meal by 50%.
« We will continue to reduce our emissions to meet our Science Based Target but also work with
partners that offer carbon removal projects in the future. That work will take time but has already
begun. We wanted to make sure we could take action now and are proud to offset all our carbon
this year supporting the work that Kariba Forest and Wonderbag do in the countries of our
heritage.
» We pride ourselves on being an industry leader in this area and work closely with Southpole
and Carbon Intelligence to track our emissions progress on an ongoing basis against our science-
based targets. We have also recently launched a tool into the business to enable us to more
accurately track the life cycle impacts of all products on our menu.
« We've created these commitments in line with the latest updates from climate science, stating
what is needed by us in order to prevent the worst impact of climate change.
+ In order to achieve our commitments, we’ve set out the following goals:
o Achieving 100% renewable energy by 2022
Supporting Nando'’s suppliers to reduce their own carbon footprint
Increasing plant-based menu offer
Building new and existing partnerships to influence wider industry change
Committing to transparent Science Based Target reporting.
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« Additionally, in May 2020 we signed the Better Chicken Commitment, pledging to fully implement higher
standards of welfare to ensure stronger, healthier chickens by 2026. We are working with suppliers and industry
groups in partnership with farmers, investing in research and using a naturally slower growing breed of chicken in
our supply chains. This builds on our long-standing commitment to meeting Red Tractor Standards and in the
UK, always serving chicken which is fresh, never frozen.

The SECR requirements on greenhouse gas emissions are reported on page 9 below.



Principal activities

The principal activity of the Group in the year under review was that of operating fast casual dining restaurants

(both company-owned and franchise) and the sale and distribution of branded sauces and condiments through -
the retail channel. The principal activity of the Company was to act as a holding company for the Group’s

consolidated business.

About Nando's

The Nando’s restaurant experience is at the heart of our business, and customers receive a warm welcome from
our friendly employees (‘Nandocas’). With each restaurant boasting its own unique ambience and original
Southern African works of art, our legendary flame-grilled PERI-PERI chicken is served in an atmosphere that
sounds, looks and feels distinctively Afro-Portuguese.

We have a saying: “Nando’s is not just about the chicken. It's never been just about the chicken. It's about the
people who make the chicken”. Driven by our values and behaviours which seek to embrace diversity, celebrate
informality and realise talent, our Nandocas are our most important asset. Thanks to our unique culture, based on
values of pride, passion, courage, integrity and family, our Nandocas feel part of more than just a restaurant
group and are encouraged to be the best they can be.

Our business model is to give our customers a consistently excellent Nando's experience through the delivery of
operational excellence from Nandocas who are empowered to do that.

Financial performance

The financial highlights include comparisons of the current year results pre-exceptional items to the prior year
results as set out below.

2021 2020 Variance

£m £m £m

Revenue 665.0 1,095.4 (430.4)
Operating profit / (loss) before exceptional items (132.9) 57.4 (190.3)
Operating profit / (loss) after exceptional items (145.2) (4.7) (140.5)

Overall, we delivered a resilient performance given the impact Covid-19 had on our markets. We had to adapt to
constantly changing challenges and requirements and were able to do so successfully. In the medium term, there
is significant growth potential in all of our markets and we will continue to invest in opening new restaurants.

Revenue fell significantly in most of our markets. Our fixed costs were not recovered in the periods our
restaurants were closed and therefore the Group made a loss before tax for the year under review of £241.8m
(2020: £99.4m). The markets have recovered since and in the last few periods trading levels have been
promising.

In the year there was £12.3m of exceptional impairment across investments in associates, right of use assets and
property, plant and equipment. See note 7 for further details.

Group capital investment ("Capex"), defined as the cash investment in tangible, intangible and equity accounted
investments and business combinations, during the year was £54.2m (2020: £97.4m), in line with our strategy to
invest in extending our global restaurant footprint and refurbishing existing restaurants, technology and systems.

Net financing expense increased by £1.9m to £96.6m (2020: £94.7m). The income tax credit for the Group during
the year was £15.8m (2020 tax expense: £13.2m), primarily given the losses in the current year in the UK. The
Group also contributes direct and indirect taxes including social security, property taxes, local taxes and value
added taxes.

At year-end, the Group had net liabilities of £139.1m (2020: net liabilities of £11.9m). This is predominantly driven
by the draw down of banking facilities during the pandemic and accrued interest.

The average number of employees across all regions during the year has fallen from 22,412 in 2020 to 20,457 in
2021.

The results for the year and the financial position of the Group are disclosed on pages 19 to 23.



Our Strategy
Our strategy is to add value through investing for profitable and socially responsible growth.

We aim to achieve this through:

« A globally defined, unique and distinctive brand;

* A cohesive and expanding international business;

» High-quality products and exemplary service to our customers;

« Protecting the future of the Group by pursuing innovative growth opportunities and prudent risk management;
- Greater engagement with our digital consumer through investment in technology; and

« Reinforcing our values and employee engagement.

The actions needed to deliver this strategy are predicated on creating an environment where Nandocas can have
fun and are given the opportunity to realise their talent - a place where our Nandocas want to work.

Operational highlights

The strength of our brand, core values, and unique customer experience have been key to the long-term
development of Nando’s business, and in recent years, we have sought to professionalise our operations, while
retaining the entrepreneurial spirit that made us successful. There have been several initiatives which have
helped us achieve our strategic aims.

Brand Strength

Each market has a brand plan focused on delivering consistent and aligned messaging, and international brand
health is measured across all our key markets and our major franchised markets at least once a year on a
consistently executed brand health tracker. '

We have made strong progress with our digital strategy, investing in the ongoing development of app-based and
online platforms. This helps us to make the customer journey easier, as well as enabling a ‘single view’ of our
customers and how they interact with Nando’s so we can better meet their needs.

Intemational expansion

The number of restaurants in operation decreased from 958 at 23 February 2020 to 913 at 28 February 2021.
This total includes the 748 (2020: 773) company-owned restaurants and 165 (2020: 185) restaurants run on a
franchise basis. The number of restaurants decreased due to closures in Canada and Australia.

Key markets for the Group include the United Kingdom, Ireland, USA, Canada, India, Australia, New Zealand,
Malaysia and Singapore. Our franchise operated markets include the United Arab Emirates, Saudi Arabia and
Qatar in the Middle East, and multiple countries in Southern Africa.

Capex for the year was £54.2m, reflecting the Group's strategy to expand its international footprint and refurbish
its existing network. Nando's restaurant design continues to win awards across the globe.

Operational excellence

Nando’s flame-grilled PERi-PERi chicken remains at the core of what we deliver. Around the world, our food
teams are fully aligned behind one food manifesto, ensuring that our food offer is consistently and excellently
executed across all markets.

Nando’s continually drives innovation through new menu ideas, service models, and technology.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The directors recognise that Nando's is exposed to a number of risks which directly affect the overall performance
of the Group. Risks identified are reviewed in detail to ensure the appropriate processes are adopted to manage
and mitigate them. The key business risks are set out below:



Health and safety

Maintaining excellent health and safety standards in the development and operation of our restaurants is central
to our business. The health and safety of our Nandocas, our customers and our contractors are of primary
importance to Nando's. We achieve this by setting the highest standards of health and safety and performing
restaurant audits to ensure we maintain our high standards. This ensures every meal served in Nando's is
prepared in a safe environment and is safe to eat. During the pandemic, we built on our strong existing practices
and increased safety as well as introduced social distancing measures, to make sure both our customers and our
teams are kept safe and comfortable. Additional training was provided for all country teams on steps to take to
keep colleagues and customers safe, with regular updates reflecting the latest public health messaging and
advice.

GDPR and Cyber

A detailed review of cyber security processes is performed on a regular basis in order to highlight any gaps and
address any challenges. Increased focus on protecting the business against potential cyber-attacks has resulted
in the implementation of additional controls to mitigate against such risks.

Employees (Nandocas)

Our Nandocas are our greatest asset; failure to attract and retain the best people would be detrimental to both the
Nando's experience and our brand reputation. In an industry which traditionally has high staff turnover, Nandocas
are key to the Group’s continued development.

Numerous training and growth opportunities exist at all levels — both within restaurants and central support
functions. These are designed to not only motivate, develop and retain employees, but to empower them to be the
best they can be. Wherever possible, we promote from within and believe strongly in recognising and rewarding
Nandocas. We also believe in playing as hard as we work, so fun days, conferences, outings and team charity
work also feature in the mix.

Product

Our commercial teams continuously develop new products to maintain an exciting and varied menu. Seasonal
changes are taken into account, as are market-related requirements, for example, in the Middle East, we offer
non-alcoholic designer drinks, while in India we have a larger than usual vegetarian offering. This ongoing focus
on menu innovation throughout the Group has allowed us to successfully launch a range of new products, tapping
into new occasions and consumer segments and an ongoing need for variety.

The key arrangements the Group has in place with several raw material suppliers are constantly reviewed and
monitored to ensure quality standards remain high. The Group has extensive procedures to ensure we mitigate
risks to our customers and teams as far as possible. We have clear procedures and standards in place and to
enforce these, we perform audits and carry out benchmarking of our restaurants.

Competition

The Company operates in a competitive and fragmented market, one that constantly brings new concepts and
products to an ever-expanding customer base.

We believe that customers’ interactions with Nandocas, the restaurant designs, ambience and superior quality
food all combine to create a unique experience — one which gives Nando’s a strong competitive advantage. By
focusing on the innovation of our products and service, as well as proactively meeting the needs of our
customers, we are confident of not only maintaining but also growing our market share.

Working capital, liquidity, other risks

The Group continually monitors cash flow and forecasts the maturity of financial liabilities. To protect the balance
sheet in light of ongoing uncertainty in the trading environment due to the Covid-19 pandemic, the Company
raised £100m in equity from its immediate parent in September 2020. Further discussion on how these risks are
managed is provided in the Directors’ Report and Note 29.



Economic Uncertainty

The Group is exposed to the risk of economic uncertainty in the markets it operates in, particularly since the Covid-
19 pandemic. The Directors perform various risk-based assessments to ensure the Group is proactive in taking
appropriate actions where necessary to reduce the related risks associated with economic uncertainty.

The Group has planned additional steps to mitigate foreign exchange risk and keep a close control over business
cost, whilst continuing to ensure we invest in maintaining high standards of customer service.

Stakeholder Engagement - Section 172 Companies Act 2006
Directors act in a way that they consider would most likely promote the success of the company for the benefit of
its stakeholders as a whole.
When making key decisions Nando's considers each of the following stakeholders:
1. Act fairly between all members of the company.
2. Maintaining a reputation for high standards and long-term consequences of decisions.
3. Have our employees’ (Nandocas’) best interests at heart.
4. Foster good relationships with suppliers, customers and our communities and care for the environment in
which we operate.

Act Fairly
Nando's is committed to acting fairly between all stakeholders of the company and being transparent in its
activities.

The desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct and the
likely long term consequences of decisions

Directors are presented at Board meetings with information on all key decisions and are briefed on potential
impacts and risks for key stakeholders. Directors consider these factors before making a final decision which
together they believe is in the best interest of the company. Examples are given in the Strategic Report within
Operational highlights: Brand Strength, International expansion and Operational excellence.

Nandocas first
We believe Nandocas are our greatest asset and are key to the company's development. We therefore work
hard to attract and develop the best people we can.

Our values of Pride, Passion, Courage, Integrity and Family underpin everything we do — from the way in which
we recruit and train — to the way in which we develop and reward.

Further examples are given in the Strategic Report, values and engagement.

The relationship with suppliers, customers and others
We work closely with our stakeholders and details are given in the strategic report within the values and
engagement section and the ESG highlights.

The impacts on communities and the environment

Nando’s has always placed importance on trying to change lives for the better, for our teams, customers, supply
chains and local communities. Our approach is twofold: we strive to improve our environmental sustainability to
help fight climate change, alongside improving the welfare of our chickens to build on our long legacy of working
towards a healthier, happier and more environmentally sustainable planet. The details for this are given in the
strategic report within the values and engagement section.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The following figures make up the baseline reporting for Nando’s, as this is the first year that the Nando’s is
required to report this information. This relates to the UK operations.
« Scope 1 consumption and emissions relate to direct combustion of fuels such as natural gas.
« Scope 2 consumption and emissions relate to indirect emissions relating to the consumption of
purchased electricity in day-to-day business operations.

« Scope 3 consumption and emissions relate to emissions resulting from sources not directly
owned by the reporting company.

Nando’s has worked to reduce carbon emissions through the procurement of renewable gas and electricity. As
such, a dual reporting approach has been taken, with location and market based emissions calculated for the
reporting period.



The total consumption (kWh) figures for energy supplies reportable by Nando's are as follows:

Utility and Scope 2021 consumption (kWh)

Grid-Supplied Electricity (Scope 2) 83,661,631
Gaseous and other fuels (Scope 1) 71,169,593
Transportation (Scope 3) 480,384
Total 155,321,608

The total emission (tCO2e) figures for energy supplies reportable by Nando’s are as follows. Conversion factors
utilised in these calculations are detailed in the appendix:

- 2021 emissions (tCO2e) 2021 emissions (tCO2e)
Utility and Scope {location based) (market based)
Grid-Supplied Electricity (Scope 2) 19,505 858
Gaseous and other fuels (Scope 1) 13,086 10,144
Transportation (Scope 3) . 116 116
Total 32,707 11,118

- An intensity metric of tCO2e per FTE (full time equivalent), and per m2 restaurant floor area has been applied for
the annual total emissions of Nando’s. The methodology of the intensity metric calculations are detailed below,
and results of this analysis is as follows:

. . 2021 intensity metric 2021 intensity metric
Intensity Metric (location based) (market based)
tCO2e / FTE ) 1.96 0.67
tCO2e / m2 restaurant floor area 0.21 0.07]

Reporting Methodology: Scope 1 and 2 consumption and CO2e emission data has been calculated in line with the
2019 UK Government environmental reporting guidance.

FTE is Full Time Equivaients of employees. Location based emissions are the country grid average emissions.
This has been calculated through DEFRA’s conversion factors. Market based emissions are calcutated through
the actual energy purchased and is a mix of renewable and grid average emissions. As per the SECR regulation
we have to disclose the /location based emissions but due to our procurement of green energy we have chosen to
disclose market based emissions as well showing the impact and reduction of emissions Nando's UK& is having.

Going Concern

On the basis of current financial projections and committed banking facilities, the Directors are satisfied that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future and consequently the financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. See note 1 for further detail, including
acknowledgement of a material uncertainty to going concern.

By order of the board

ot

L Tait St Mary's House
Director 42 Vicarage Crescent Battersea
London
SW11 3LD
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Nando's Group Holdings Limited
Annual report and statutory consolidated financial statements
28 February 2021
Company registered number 06451677
Directors’ Report

The directors present their annual report for the 53 week period ended 28 February 2021.

The Company has chosen, in accordance with S414 C(11) of the Companies Act (2006), to present information
that is otherwise required to be presented in the Director's Report within the Strategic Report.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared under international accounting standards in conformity with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Directors
The directors who held office during the year or have since been appointed were as follows:

R A G T'Hooft
C F Luyckx

R S Papps

L Perlman

L L Tait

Employees (Nandocas)

The Group encourages the involvement of all Nandocas in-the Group's performance using various methods,
including staff surveys, employee forums and incentive schemes.

The employee forums and staff surveys are also conducted to obtain the views of Nandocas, share financial
information, to ensure all Nandocas are kept informed on all matters of concern to them.

The Group’s policy is to encourage the employment of disabled people where reasonably practical. Full and fair
consideration is given to employment applications from disabled persons having regard to their aptitude and
abilities.

The Group takes all reasonable steps to ensure that all employment conditions are applied regardless of sex,
race colour, ethnic background, religion or disability. So far as is practicable, arrangements are made to continue
the employment of an employee who becomes disabled and to provide them with training and career
development.

Corporate Governance

The Nando's Board has chosen to report the company’s corporate governance against the Wates Corporate
Governance Principles for Large Private companies.

Pumpose and Leadership
Nando’s believes its purpose is to change lives. This is set out in the Strategic Report detailing values and
engagement.

The Board and Director Responsibilities

The Board takes a number of steps to ensure that when making decisions there is sufficient regard to key
stakeholders. During the period ended 28 February 2021 the Board has engaged significantly to understand the
corporate governance needed to promote balanced decision making and the Board will look for further inclusion
of all stakeholder interests in the decision-making process in the period ended 27 February 2022.

11



The Nando's board consists of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and shareholder representatives.

The Board has 3 scheduled core meetings every year with additional meetings scheduled as required. The Board
receives regular and timely information on all key aspects of the business. Day to day running of the business is
delegated by the Board to the “Mesa” (our executive leadership team).

The board also maintains a conflicts of interest register to ensure that decisions are made independently.

The Board have established and approved terms of reference for the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee
assists the Board in responsibilities regarding financial reporting and overseeing the performance and
independence of external auditors. The Audit Committee also assists the Board in matters of risk management
and internal controls, including monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of fraud policies, internal control and
risk management. Membership consists of one Executive and one Non-Executive Director.

Opportunity and risk

The key operational risks and mitigations are set out in the Strategic Report above under the section entitled
principle risks and uncertainties. The Audit Committee is required to give regular updates of the group risk
schedule to the Board.

Remuneration

The current remuneration policy is that the CEO salary is recommended by the Chairman; Mesa (Executive
Directors) and other executive management salary are recommended by the CEO and approved by the
Chairman. The same principle is then cascaded down throughout management. The Chairman salary is set by
the major shareholders.

Executive Director and Senior Management remuneration is assessed against a balanced scorecard comprising
financial and non-financial targets (including Nandoca staff welfare and brand scores).

Stakeholder Relationships and Engagement
Further information about the key stakeholder groups and how the Board consider these groups in relation to
decisions made are set out within the strategic report including values and engagement and Employees.

Political and charitable contributions

The Group made no political contributions during the year.

The Group made charitable donations of £167.0k (2020: £435.0k). These donations represent direct charity
giving only and therefore capture only a small element of the work and time we dedicate directly to charities both
internationally and in the communities in which we operate. These are cash donations and do not include any of
the programs mentioned in the values and engagement section above.

Dividends
No dividends were paid during the year (2020: nil).
Taxation

Nando's is a responsible corporate citizen and taxpayer. The Group pays all taxes due in every jurisdiction where
we operate. The corporate income tax credit for the Group during the year was £15.8m (2020 tax expense:
£13.2m) primarily given the losses in the current year in the UK. Nando's also contributes further direct and
indirect taxes including social security, property taxes, local taxes and value added taxes.

Financial Management and Financial Instruments

The Group's Financial Risk management objectives and policies, including entering hedging arrangements to
manage the interest rate risk, and the main risks arising from the Group’s financial assets and liabilities are
summarised in note 29.

12



Indemnification of directors

Qualifying third party indemnity provisions (as defined by the Companies Act 2006) are in force for the benefit of
the directors who held office during the year. The Company also provides directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
for its directors and other officers.

Future developments

An indication of likely future developments in the business due to Covud 19 have been included in the Strategic
Report on page 3.

Disclosure of information to auditor

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’ Report confirm that, so far as they are each
aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditor is unaware; and each director has
taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director to make himself aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company's auditor is aware of that information.

Auditor

Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, the auditor will be deemed to be reappointed and KPMG
LLP will therefore continue in office.

By order of the board

Lt

L Tait St Mary's House
Director 42 Vicarage Crescent Battersea
London
SW11-3LD
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND THE
STATUTORY CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and reguilations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare group and parent company financial statements for each financial year.
Under that law they have elected to prepare the group financial statements in accordance international accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and applicable law and have elected to
prepare the parent company financial statements in accordance with UK accounting standards and applicable law (UK
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework. ’

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and parent company and of their profit or loss for that period. In
preparing each of the group and parent company financial statements, the directors are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

+ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable, relevant, reliable and prudent;

- for the group financial statements, state whether they have been prepared in accordance with international
accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006;

- for the parent company financial statements, state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed,
subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

- assess the group and parent company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern; and

« use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or
to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
parent company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent
company and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are
responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such
steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the group and to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NANDO’'S GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Nando’s Group Holdings Limited (“the company”) for the year ended 28
February 2021 which comprise the Consolidated Income Statement and Other Comprehensive Income, Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows, Company Statement of Financial Position, Company Statement of Changes in Equity and related notes,
including the accounting policies in notes 1 to 3.

In our opinion:
- the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at
28 February 2021 and of the group’s loss for the year then ended;

« the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in
conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006;

« the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with international accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements of, and as applied in accordance with the provisions of, the Companies
Act 2006; and

« the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)") and applicable law.
Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of
the group in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion.

Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to note 1 to the financial statements which indicates that a loan facility matures within 12 months of
the signing date of these financial statements (see note 25) and the Group's intention is to refinance the facility.

However, the planned refinancing is not yet legally binding. These events and conditions, along with the other matters -

explained in note 1, constitute a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the group’s and the parent
company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Going concern basis of preparation

The directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend to liquidate the
group or the company, or to cease their operations, and as they have concluded that the group and the company’s
financial position means that this is realistic for at least a year from the date of approval of the financial statements
(“the going concern period”). As stated above, they have also concluded that there is a material uncertainty related to
going concern.

We critically assessed assumptions in the base case and downside scenarios relevant to liquidity and covenant
metrics, in particular in relation to the impact of COVID-19 on performance by comparing to historical trends in severe
economic situations and overlaying knowledge of the entity's plans based on approved budgets and our knowledge of
the entity and the sector in which it operates.

We assessed whether downside scenarios applied mutually consistent and severe assumptions in aggregate, using
our assessment of the possible range of each key assumption and our knowledge of inter-dependencies.

We assessed the working capital assumptions inherent in the forecasts to actual recent experience and existing
supplier/customer arrangements.

We also compared past budgets to actual results to assess the directors' track record of budgeting accurately. We
inspected the confirmation from the lender of the level of committed financing, and the associated covenant
requirements.

We considered whether the going concern disclosure in note 1 to the financial statements gives a full and accurate
description of the directors’ assessment of going concern, including the identified risks, dependencies, and related
sensitivities.
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We assessed the completeness of the going concern disclosure.

Our conclusions based on this work:

« we consider that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is appropriate; and

» we found the going concern disclosure in note 1 to be acceptable.

Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations - ability to detect
Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud

Tb identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (“fraud risks”) we assessed events or conditions that could
indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk assessment
procedures included:

- Enquiring of directors, the audit committee, and inspection of policy documentation as to the group’s high-leve
policies and procedures to prevent and detect fraud, including the group’s channel for “whistleblowing”, as well as
whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud.

*Reading Board meeting minutes.

«Considering remuneration incentive schemes and performance targets for management/ directors

*Using analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of fraud
throughout the audit. This included communication from the group to full scope component audit teams of relevant
fraud risks identified at the group level and request to full scope component audit teams to report to the group audit
team any instances of fraud that could give rise to a material misstatement at group.

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account possible pressures to meet profit targets and our overall
knowledge of the control environment, we perform procedures to address the risk of management override of controls
and the risk of fraudulent revenue recognition, in particular the risk that the sales of goods in restaurants and grocery
sales are understated through the posting of journal entries outside the normal revenue process and the risk that
group and component management may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries.

We did not identify any additional fraud risks.

We performed procedures including:

Identifying journal entries to test for all full scope components based on risk criteria and other consolidation
adjustments, comparing the identified entries to supporting documentation. These included entries posted to revenue
and cash for which the other side of the journal was posted to an unexpected account.

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the
financial statements from our general commercial and sector experience, and through discussion with the directors
and other management (as required by auditing standards), and discussed with the directors and other management
the policies and procedures regarding compliance with laws and regulations.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of non-
compliance throughout the audit. This included communication from the group to full-scope component audit teams of
relevant laws and regulations identified at the group level, and a request for full scope component auditors to report to
the group team any instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations that could give rise to a material
misstatement at group.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the group is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including financial
reporting-legislation (including related companies legislation), distributable profits legislation and taxation legislation,

and we assessed the extent of compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related

financial statement items.
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Secondly, the group is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-compliance could
have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through the imposition of
fines or litigation or the loss of the group’s license to operate. We identified the following areas as those most likely to
have such an effect: health and safety, the Food Act (including food hygiene regulations), employment law, GDPR,
PCI compliance and certain aspects of company legislation recognising the nature of the group’s activities and its
legal form. Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and
regulations to enquiry of the directors and other management and inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence,
if any. Therefore if a breach of operational regulations is not disclosed to us or evident from relevant correspondence,
an audit will not detect that breach.

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some
material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit in
accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is
from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited procedures
required by auditing standards would identify it.

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. Our audit procedures are
designed to detect material misstatement. We are not responsible for preventing non-compliance or fraud and cannot
be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and regulations.

Strategic report and directors’ report

The directors are responsible for the strategic report and the directors’ report. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover those reports and we do not express an audit opinion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the strategic report and the directors’ report and, in doing so, consider whether, based on
our financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the financial
statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work:

« we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report and the directors’ report;

« in our opinion the information given in those reports for the financial year is consistent with the financial statements;
and '

« in our opinion those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

« the parent coﬁpany financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
« certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

» we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 14, the directors are responsible for: the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal control as they determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; assessing the group and parent company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either
intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do
SO.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor's report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK)
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC’s website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.
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The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s
members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Hugh Green (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Audit
Chartered Accountants

KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants
Gateway House
Tollgate

Chandlers Ford

. Sefw o

S053 3TG
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Consolidated Income Statement and Other Comprehensive Income

for the 53 week period ended 28 February 2021 (52 week period ended 23 February 2020)

Nando's Group Holdings Limited
Annual report and statutory consolidated financial statements
28 February 2021
Company registered number 06451677

2021 2021 2021 2020 2020 2020
Note Before Exceptional Before Exceptional
exceptional , p Total exceptional . p Total
N items (note 7) . items (note 7)
items items
£'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s
Revenue 4 664,966 - 664,966 1,095,433 - 1,095,433
Cost of sales (646,080) - (646,080) (865,788) - (865,788)
Gross Profit 18,886 - 18,886 229,645 - 229,645
Other operating income 5 5,573 - 5,573 4,529 - 4,529
Administrative expenses 6 (155,837) (12,275) (168,112) (175,692) (62,117) (237,809)
Share of loss of equity-accounted investees, 20 (1,533) - (1,533) (1,106) - (1,106)
net of tax .
Operating (loss) / profit ) {(132,911) (12,275) {145,186) 57,376 (62,117) (4,741)
Financial income 11 1,844 - 1,844 1,696 - 1,696
Financial expense 12 (98,455) - (98,455) (96,376) - (96,376)
Net financial expense (96,611) - (96,611) {94,680) - (94,680)
Loss before tax (229,522) (12,275) {241,797) {37,304) {62,117) (99,421)
Income tax (credit) / expense 13 15,779 - 15,779 (13,182) - (13,182)
(Loss) / profit for the period . (213,743) (12,275) {226,018) {50,486) (62,117) (112,603)
Other comprehensive income
Items that may not be reclassified
subsequently to profit / (loss)
Exchange differences on translating foreign (1,256) - (1,256) (1,761) - (1,761)
operations
Other comprehensive income for the period, (1,256) - (1,256) (1,761) - (1,761)
net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the period (214,999) (12,275) (227,274) (52,247) (62,117) {(114,364)
Total comprehensive income for the period
attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent (214,751) (12,275) (227,026) (52,379) (62,117) (114,496)
Non-controlling interest 19 (248) - (248) 132 - 132
(214,999) (12,275) (227,274) (52,247) (62,117) (114,364)

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements.



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
as at 28 February 2021 (23 February 2020)

Non-current assets

Property plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Right of use assets

Investments in equity accounted investees
Deferred tax assets

Trade and other receivables

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Current tax receivable

Total assets

Current liabilities

Other interest bearing loans and borrowings -
Trade and other payables

Tax payable

Provisions

Current lease liability

Derivative financial instruments

Non-current liabilities

Other interest bearing loans and borrowings
Loans due to related parties

Other payables

Deferred tax liabilities

Non current lease liability

Provisions

Total liabilities
Net (liabilities)/assets

Equity

Share Capital

Capital Contribution reserve

Own share reserve

Foreign Currency translation reserve
Retained Earnings

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent

Non-controlling interest
Total equity

Note

15
16
18
20
21
23

22
23
24

25
26

28
18
30

25
25
26
21
18
28

31
31
31

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements.

Lul Tt
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Annual report and statutory consolidated financial statements

28 February 2021

Company registered number 06451677

2021 2020
£'000s £000s
335,928 362,123
626,102 651,652
382,442 418,779
12,086 19,483
8,284 222
9,553 10,741
1,374,395 1,463,000
8,146 6,580
33,022 33,078
119,697 82,693
13,537 536
174,402 122,887
1,548,797 1,585,887
(12,824) (13,104)
(165,206) (162,598)
(206) (2,141)
(1,989) (2,031)
(43,091) (65.784)
- (98)
. (223,316) (245,756)
(358,575) (296,086)
(697,799) (644,318) -
(7,856) (8,664)
(2,792) (1.967)
(393,193) (396,498)
(4,319) (4,548)
(1,464,534) (1,352,061)
(1,687,850) (1,597,817)
(139,053) (11,930)
280,000 180,010
7,194 8,450
(427,461) (201,852)
(140,267) (13,392)
1.214 1,462
(139,053) (11,930)
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Nando's Group Holdings Limited

Annual report and statutory consolidated financial statements
28 February 2021

Company registered number 06451677

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the 53 week period ended 28 February 2021 (52 week period ended 23 February 2020)

2021 2020

£'000s £'000s
Cash flows from operating activities
(Loss) / Profit for the period (from continuing operations) (226,018) (112,603)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 102,884 108,227
Depreciation of right of use asset 50,365 52,076
Impairment loss on trade receivables 1,539 210
Impairment loss on non current assets 12,275 - 61,546
Reversal of impairments (1,133) -
Release of lease liabilities (lease modifications and rent concessions) (11,528) -
Loss/(gain) on disposal of non current assets . 157 9,467
Share of equity accounted investees 1,533 1,106
Share Based payment expense 161 (48)
Financial income (1,844) (1,696)
Financial expense 98,455 96,376
Taxation (15,779) 13,182

11,067 227,843
(Increase)/decrease in trade & other receivables (336) 2,495
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (1,566) 940
Increase/(decrease) in trade & other payables 857 (5,875)
Increase/(decrease) in provisions (134) (2,003)
Cash generated from operations 9,888 223,400
Tax paid (4,325) (8,922)
Net cash flows from operating activities 5,563 214,478
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from disposal of Property plant and equipment - -
Acquisition of business (net of cash acquired) (361) (669)
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (53,013) (95,606)
Acquisition of equity accounted investments (167) (168)
Acquisition of intangible assets (623) (932)
Interest received 410 797
Dividends received - 10
Net cash flows from investing activities 4 (53,754) (96,568)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from long term borrowings 60,000 -
Repayment of long term borrowings - (146,645)
Purchase of non controlling interest - -
Proceeds from issue of share capital 100,000 -
Lease payments (principal portion) (31,911) (37,324)
Interest paid (42,450) (43,948)

Net cash flows from financing activities 85,639 (227,917)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Nando's Group Holdings Limited
Annual report and statutory consolidated financial statements

28 February 2021

Company registered number 06451677

for the 53 week period ended 28 February 2021 (52 week period ended 23 February 2020)

Net cash flows from operating activities
Net cash flows from investing activities
Net cash flows from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Effects of foreign exchange rate changes on the balance of cash held in
foreign currencies _

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Cash and cash equivalents per balance sheet .
Bank overdrafts
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period per cash flow

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements.

Note

24

24

Group Group
2021 2020
£'000s £'000s
5,663 214,478
(53,754) (96,568)
85,639 (227,917)
37,448 (110,007)
82,693 193,029
(444) (329)
119,697 82,693
119,697 82,693
119,697 82,693
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Balance at 24 February 2019

Changes in equity for 2020

Profit for the period

Other comprehensive income

Total Comprehensive Income for 2020
Issue of share capital

Transfer of reserves

Dividends

Equity settled share based payments
Purchase of non controlling interest

Balance at 23 February 2020

Changes in equity for 2021

Loss for the period

Other comprehensive income

Total Comprehensive Income for 2021
Dividends

Issue of share capital

Redemption of B shares (see note 27)
Equity settled share based payments
Balance at 28 February 2021

Nando's Group Holdings Limited

Annual report and statutory consolidated financial statements
28 February 2021

Company registered number 06451677

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

Share Capital Capital Own Share Foreign Retained Total Non-  Total Equity
Contribution Reserve currency earnings controlling
Reserve translation (Profit & loss interest
reserve reserve)
£'000s £000s £'000s £'000s . £'000s £000s £'000s £'000s
180,010 - - 10,211 (88,290) 101,931 1,330 103,261
- - - - (112,735) (112,735) 132 - (112,603)
- - - (1,761) - (1,761) : - (1,761)
- - - (1,761) (112,735) (114,496) 132 (114,364)
- R - - (827) (827) - (827)
180,010 - - 8,450 (201,852) (13,392) 1,462 (11,930)
- - - - (225,770) (225,770) (248) (226,018)
- - - (1,256) - (1,256) - (1,256)
- - - (1,256) (225,770) (227,026) (248) (227,274)
100,000 - - - - 100,000 - 100,000
(10) - - - - (10) - (10)
- - - - 161 161 - 161
280,000 - - 7,194 (427,461) (140,267) 1,214 (139,053)

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been applied consistently for all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

1 Basis of preparation

Nando’s Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a private company, limited by shares, incorporated, registered
and domiciled in the England. The registered number is 06451677 and the registered address is St Mary's House, 42
Vicarage Crescent, Battersea, London, SW11 3LD.

The Nando's Group Holdings Limited Group includes the company and entities controlled by it and its subsidiaries and
equity account the Group's interest in associates and joint ventures (“the Group”). The Group financial statements
consolidate those of the Company and its subsidiaries. The directors have prepared these financial statements on a
going concern basis.

The Group consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Accounting
Standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. The Company has elected to prepare its
parent company financial statements in accordance with FRS 101; these are presented on pages 74 to 89.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts in the financial statements.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions or estimates are
significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in note 3.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterling, which is the Group's presentation currency.
The functional currency of the Company is Pounds Sterling.

Going concem

As at 28 February 2021 the consolidated Group had net liabilities of £139.1m, net current liabilities of £48.9m, an
operating loss of £145.2m and a loss for the period then ended of £226.0m. Operating cash inflows for the year were
£5.5m. The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which the directors consider to be
appropriate for the following reasons.

Borrowings at 28 February 2021 stood at £1,069.2m before lease liabilities and at £1,505.5m including lease liabilities
with cash balances of £119.7m, creating a net debt position of £949.5m before lease liabilities and £1,385.8m
including lease liabilities and undrawn facilities of £30m.

Coronavirus (Covid-19) pandemic

The year ending February 2021 was the most challenging in Nando’s 34-year history. Through the height of the
pandemic the majority of our restaurants across the Group were closed. Since then we have operated through a slow
and erratic recovery with successive Iockdowns and re-openings in all markets. We are still operating in a period of
significant uncertainty.

As at the date of approving these financial statements, the on-going impact of Covid-19 on the Company’s trading is
becoming increasingly clear, with Roadmaps for re-opening the wider economy and specifically the hospitality sector
set out for all geographic parts of the business. However, given the ongoing uncertainty, the directors have prepared
cash flow forecasts on a "Base case" and a "severe but plausible downside scenario” basis.

A loan facility matures within 12 months of the signing date of these financial statements (see note 25) and the
Group's intention is to refinance the facility. Given the historic cash generation of the business and its clear brand
strength, the Directors are confident about the ability to refinance the facility when it becomes due. However, the
planned refinancing is not yet finalised or legally binding.
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1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Going concem (continued)

Base Case

The 'Base Case' assumption includes budgets prepared by operating entities reflecting the impacts of Covid-19 on the

current financial period (ending 27 February 2022). The budgets forecast a slow return back to business as usual by

year end. In the following financial period (ending 26 February 2023) the forecast anticipates that all trading
- restrictions are removed and the Eat-In channel returns to sales volumes consistent with pre-Covid performance.

Using this Base Case, the Directors have prepared cash flow forecasts for the going concern period (being forecasts
for the next 12 months from the date of approval of these financial statements, drawn from budgets for the rest of the

current financial period and the next financial period). These indicate that with the planned refinancing, the Group
would be able to operate within the existing facilities that are available to it, lncludlng any scheduled repayments,
without breaking any covenants and meet its liabilities as they fall due for that period.

Downside scenario

It is currently very difficult to assess how the Covid-19 situation will evolve. The Directors believe that the Base Case
scenario above is reasonable, assuming a slow return to pre-Covid performance. However, it is possible that the
relaxation of lockdown restrictions may be reversed temporarily at a local level, or that the recovery profile is slower
than in the Base Case. The Directors have therefore prepared a severe but plausible 'Downside scenario' that models:

- A 20% sales reduction and a corresponding gross profit reduction, and a 10% reduction to other operating costs, with
no change to rent for both the current financial period and the next financial period. Capital expenditure drops by 20%
in the current financial period and 40% in the next financial period in this scenario.

- For the Grocery division, the downside scenario includes a 10% drop in EBITDA and for the central support function
a 10% increase in costs.

In the Downside scenario, with the planned refinancing, the Group will be able to operate within the facilities that are
available for the 12 months following the signing date of these financial statements.

Access to wider Group facilities

The Base case and Downside scenario depend on the Group's planned refinancing. Given the Group's history of cash
generation and its clear brand strength, the Group expects to be able to raise such funds as necessary. However the
planned refinancing is not yet finalised or legally binding. This represents a material uncertainty in both the Base case
and the Downside scenario that may cast significant doubt on the Group and Company's abilities to continue as a
going concern and therefore to continue realising their assets and discharging their liabilities in the normal course of
business. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that would result from the basis of preparation
being inappropriate.

1.1 Standards issued and applied for the first time this year
The following new and revised Standards and Interpretations have been adopted in the current period. Unless
otherwise disclosed, their adoption has had no material impact on the amounts reported in these financial statements.

+ Amendments to IFRS 16 ‘COVID-19 - related rent concessions’ was implemented in the year, the impact of
which is covered in note 2.17.2.

« Amendments to ‘References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards’

» Amendments to IFRS 3 '‘Definition of a business’

* Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 ‘Definition of material’

- Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 ‘Interest rate benchmark reform’

1.2 Standards and interpretations issued and not yet effective

At the date of autharisation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations which have not
been applied in these financial statements, were in issue but not yet effective or not yet endorsed for the period
presented:

« Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 ‘Interest rate benchmark reform — Phase 2’
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21 Measurement convention

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except that the following assets and liabilities are
stated at their fair value: certain financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivatives) measured at fair value.
Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale are stated at the lower of previous carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell.

2.2 Basis of consolidation
The consolidated accounts of Nando's Group Holdings Limited includes the company and entities controlled by it and
its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved when the investor
» has power over the investee;
+ is exposed or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
- has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

If facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above,
the investor shall reassess whether it controls the investee.

An investor can have power over an investee even if it holds less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee. All
facts and circumstances are considered in assessing whether or not voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it
power, for example, through:
« contractual arrangements with other vote holders;
« rights from other contractual arrangements that indicate that the company has the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee;
- the size of the company’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of other vote
holders; or
- potential voting rights held by the company that are substantive.

The Group enters into franchise arrangements with third parties which confer the right to operate the Nando's brand
restaurant in designated locations. In exchange, the Group receives a variable royalty as described in note 2.15. The
facts and circumstances of each franchise agreement are considered when determining whether control is achieved.
Whilst the franchise arrangements provide for the group to have certain protective rights over the franchisees use of
the Nando's brand, these rights do not constitute power and therefore control over the franchisees.

Investment in subsidiaries

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins from the date the investor gains control of an investee and ceases when the
-investor loses control of an investee. The purchase, or acquisition, method of accounting is used to account for the
acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of the acquisition is measured as the fair value of assets
transferred, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred at the date of exchange. Intra-group transactions,
balances and unrealised gains and losses on transactions between group companies are eliminated.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position separately
from the equity attributable to equity owners of the parent company. Non-controlling shareholders’ interest may initially
be measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate share of the fair value of the
acquiree's identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on each acquisition individually.
Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount of those interests at initial
recognition plus the non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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2.2 Basis of consolidation (continued)

Investment in subsidiaries (continued)

Acquisitions or disposals of non-controlling interests which do not affect the parent company’s control of the subsidiary
are accounted for as transactions with equity holders. Any difference between the fair value of the amount paid or
received and the change in non-controlling interests is recognised directly in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control of a subsidiary, any retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair
value at the date when control is lost with the adjustment being recognised in profit or loss as part of the gain or loss
on disposal of the controlling interest. All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (this may mean that these amounts are reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified by applicable IFRS).

Investment in Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest
in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee but is not control or joint control over those policies. The investment in an associate is initially recognised at
cost and adjusted for the Group’s share of in the net assets of the investee after the date of acquisition, and for any
impairment in value (equity method), except when the investment is classified as held-for-sale in accordance with
IFRS 5 Non-current assets held-for-sale and discontinued operations. The Group recognises losses to the extent there
is a legal or constructive obligation in relation to those losses.

Joint venture

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
net assets of the arrangement. In classifying whether an investee is jointly controlled, management considers the
rights and obligations of the parties to the arrangement. This includes the structure and form of the arrangement, the
terms agreed by the parties in the contractual arrangement and other facts and circumstances. The investment in a
joint venture is initially recognised at cost and adjusted for the Group’s share of in the net assets of the investee after
the date of acquisition, and for any impairment in value (equity method), except when the investment is classified as
held-for-sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current assets held-for-sale and discontinued operations. The Group
recognises losses to the extent there is a legal or constructive obligation in relation to those losses. When the Group
loses joint control, it proportionately reclassifies the related items which were previously accumulated in equity through
other comprehensive income to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. If an investment remains, it is measured
" to fair value, with the fair value adjustment being recognised in profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

2.3 Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in the respective functional currencies of the entities within the Group.
Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the exchange rates applying at the reporting
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for:

- exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings which are regarded as adjustments to interest costs,
where those interest costs qualify for capitalisation to assets under construction;

« exchange differences on loans to or from a foreign operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely
to occur and therefore forms part of the net investment in the foreign operation, which are recognised initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the
net investment.
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23 Foreign currencies (continued)

Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated to Pounds Sterling using exchange rates at
period end. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuated significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rate on transaction date is used. Goodwill
acquired in business combinations of foreign operations are treated as assets of that operation and translated at the
closing rate.

Exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate category of
equity.

On the disposal of a foreign operation, the accumulated exchange differences of that operation, which is attributable to
the Group are recognised in profit or loss.

24 Financial instruments

The Group classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a
financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. Financial
instruments are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

' 2.41 Financial assets '
Financial assets comprise cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables. Cash and cash equivalents
include short term timing differences for credit card receivables.

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated and are initially measured at fair value where there
is a significant financing component. Trade receivables without a significant financing component is initially measured
at the transaction price.

Trade receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost as they meet both of the following conditions:

- they are held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

- their contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Trade receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less
provision for impairment using the expected credit loss approach.

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECLs) on trade receivables using the simplified
expected credit loss model which is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group changes its business
model for managing financial assets in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the
first reporting period following the change in the business model.

Foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition
is recognised in profit or loss.
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24 Financial instruments (continued)

2.4.1 Financial assets (continued)

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating ECL, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the
Group's historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30 days
past due. The company considers a financial asset to be in default when. the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the company in full, without recourse by the company to actions such as realising security (if any is held)
or the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and the cash
flows that the company expects to receive). ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset. At
each reporting date, the company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit-impaired. A
financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either
- partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Company’'s cash management are included as a component of cash and cash
- equivalents for the purpose only of the cash flow statement.

24 Financial instruments (continued)

2.4.2 Financial liabilities (other than derivative financial instruments)
Financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings and trade and other payables. Financial liabilities are initially
recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

2.4.3 Derivative financial instruments

The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its market and interest rates risk exposures and mitigate
risks to its cash flow. Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value. The gain or loss on remeasurement
to fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

2.4.4 Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the value of proceeds received, net of costs directly
attributable to the issue of the instruments.

29



Nando's Group Holdings Limited
Annual report and statutory consolidated financial statements
28 February 2021

2 Accounting Policies (continued)

2.5 Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration for acquisition is measured
at the fair values of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in order
to obtain control of the acquiree (at the date of exchange). Costs incurred in connection with the acquisition are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. Where a business combination is achieved in stages, previously held interests
in the acquiree are re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date (date the Group obtains control) and the resulting
gain or loss, is recognised in profit or loss. Adjustments are made to fair values to bring the accounting policies of
acquired businesses into alignment with those of the Group. The costs of integrating and reorganising acquired
" businesses are charged to the post acquisition profit or loss.

If the initial accounting is incomplete at the reporting date, provisional amounts are recorded. These amounts are
subsequently adjusted during the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognised when new
information about its existence is obtained during this period.

Non-measurement period adjustments to contingent consideration(s) classified as equity are not remeasured. Non-
measurement period adjustments to other contingent considerations are remeasured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. :

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to
their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the group’s incremental borrowing rate, being
the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions.

The Group measures the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed at their acquisition date fair values,
the fair value is determined by reference to the asset or liability being exchanged in an orderly transaction between
market participants to sell the asset or transfer the liability at the measurement date under current market conditions.
The value of the reacquired rights are separately valued on the basis of the remaining contractual term of the
franchisee agreement using the income approach.

Non financial assets are measured at fair value at acquisition date with reference to the highest and best use of the
asset, specifically if the highest and best use of the asset is to use the asset in combination with other assets. The fair
value of Property, plant and equipment is determined using the depreciated replacement cost approach.

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as the:
» fair value of the consideration transferred; plus
+ recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; plus
« fair value of the existing equity interest in the acquiree; less
+ net recognised amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
2.6 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

30



Nando's Group Holdings Limited
Annual report and statutory consolidated financial statements
28 February 2021

2 Accounting Policies (continued)
2.6  Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is provided to write off the cost, less residual value, on a straight line
basis over the estimated useful lives as follows:

+ Buildings 40 years
* Plant and equipment 3-10 years
* Fixtures and fittings 3-10 years
* Motor vehicles 4-5 years
+ Capitalised pre-opening costs 4 years
» Leasehold improvements Life of the lease

* Land is not depreciated

Pre-opening costs which are capitalised include project management costs directly associated with bringing the asset
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
These costs comprise primarily a proportion of payroll costs for named individuals involved in these Project
Management teams and are directly attributable to these restaurant fit outs and these are presented within leasehold
improvements. All other pre-opening costs are expensed directly to the Profit and Loss Account as incurred.

Residual values, remaining useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed annually and adjusted if appropriate.
Gains or losses on disposal are included in profit or loss.
2.7 Intangible assets

Amortisation

Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the intangible asset
unless such lives are indefinite. These charges are included in administrative expenses. Intangible assets with an
indefinite useful life are tested for impairment annually. Other intangible assets are amortised from the date they are
available for use. The useful lives are as follows:

» Reacquired franchise rights over the term of the franchise agreement 1-23 years
» IT Development and software 3 years
« Intellectual Property 20 years

Amortisation periods and methods are reviewed annually and adjusted if appropriate.

Intangible assets acquired sepérately
Intangible assets acquired separately are shown at historical cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses.

Intangible assets generated internally
Expenditure on research activities is recognised in the income statement as an expense as incurred.

Expenditure on development activities is capitalised if the product or process is technically and commercially feasible
and the Group intends to and has the technical ability and sufficient resources to complete development, future
economic benefits are probable and if the Group can measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible
asset during its development. Development activities involve a plan or design for the production of new or substantially
improved products or processes. The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads and capitalised borrowing costs. Other development expenditure is recognised in
the income statement as an expense as incurred. Capitalised development expenditure is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and less accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets recognised in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognised separately from goodwill are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date. .

Other intangible assets

Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands is recognised in the income statement as an expense as
incurred. Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses.
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2.8 Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions comprises the excess of the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred, the
fair value of any previously held interests, and the recognised value of the non-controlling interest in the acquiree over
the net of the acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to groups of cash-generating
units before it is tested for impairment annually. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying
amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold. In respect of equity accounted investees, the carrying amount of goodwill
is included in the carrying amount of the investment in the investee.

2.9 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value on a weighted average basis. Cost comprises the
purchase cost of goods, and, where applicable to the Grocery division of the Group, it also includes direct labour and
overheads related to manufacture. In the case of manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost includes an
appropriate share of overheads based on normal operating capacity.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses annually whether there is any indication that any of its assets have been impaired, other than
inventories and deferred tax assets. If such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated and
compared to its carrying value. Where it is impossible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the smallest cash generating unit to which the asset is allocated.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is recognised as revaluation decrease.

For goodwill, intangible assets that have an indefinite life, and intangible assets not yet available for use, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually and at the end of each reporting period if there is an indication of
impairment.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash
inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit’). The goodwill acquired in a business
combination, for the purpose of impairment testing, is allocated to cash-generating units, or (“*CGU"). Subject to an
operating segment ceiling test, for the purposes of goodwill impairment testing, CGUs to which goodwill has been
allocated are aggregated so that the level at which impairment is tested reflects the lowest level at which goodwill is
monitored for internal reporting purposes. Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to groups of CGUs
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the units, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro
rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised in
prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists.
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.
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2.11 Retirement benefits

The Group operates defined contribution pension schemes. The Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity
from the Group, in an independently administered fund. These contributions are expensed in the period in which the
employees rendered the services entitling them to the benefits.

212 Share-based payments

Share-based payment arrangements in which the Group receives goods or services as consideration for its own equity
instruments are accounted for as equity-settled share-based payment transactions, regardless of how the equity
instruments are obtained by the Group. Share-based payment transactions in which the Group receives goods or
services by incurring a liability to transfer cash or other assets that is based on the price of the Group’s equity
instruments are accounted for as cash-settled share-based payments. All current arrangements are equity-settled
arrangements.

For the equity-settled schemes, the fair value of a share plan is recognised as an expense over the expected vesting
period with a corresponding entry to retained earnings. The fair value of the share plans is determined at the date of
grant. Non-market based vesting conditions (i.e. Group profitability targets and Scorecard) are taken into account in
estimating the number of awards likely to vest, which is reviewed at each accounting date up to the vesting date, at
which point the estimate is adjusted to reflect the actual awards issued. No adjustment for past service is made during
the vesting date even if the options are forfeited, or are not exercised. For share-based payment awards with non-
vesting conditions, the grant date fair value of the share-based payment is measured to reflect such conditions and
there is no true-up for differences between expected and actual outcomes. The fair value of the share plan is
measured using the Monte Carlo method.

2.13 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects risks specific to
the liability.

214 Equity
Financial instruments issued by the Group are treated as equity only to the extent that they meet the following two
conditions: :

a. they include no contractual obligations upon the group to deliver cash or other financial assets or to exchange
financial assets or financial liabilities with another party under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the group;
and

b. where the instrument will or may be settled in the company’s own equity instruments, it is either a non-derivative
that includes no obligation to deliver a variable number of the group’'s own equity instruments or is a derivative that will
be settled by the company’s exchanging a fixed amount of cash or other financial assets for a fixed number of its own
equity instruments.

To the extent that this definition-is not met, the proceeds of issue are classified as a financial liability. Where the
instrument so classified takes the legal form of the company's own shares, the amounts presented in these financial
statements for called up share capital exclude amounts in relation to those shares.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the company's equity instruments, for example as a result of share buy-back,
the consideration paid, including any directly incremental costs (net of taxes) is deducted from equity attributable to
the owners of the Group as treasury shares until such time that the shares are cancelled or reissued.

33



Nando's Group Holdings Limited
Annual report and statutory consolidated financial statements
28 February 2021

2 Accounting Policies (continued)

2.15 Revenue
Revenue arises from the Group’s principal activities: the sale of goods in the operation of fast casual dining
restaurants, the sale of grocery products, royalty income and franchise fees.

Revenue is recognised when the performance obligations are satisfied and control has transferred to the customer.
Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, net of returns, discounts and sales taxes (such as VAT and
similar).

Sale of goods

The performance obligations are the goods sold in the restaurant, and in some markets we run a loyalty programme,
which is deemed to be a material right to the customer. Revenues allocated to the goods sold in the restaurant are
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains the goods, and revenues allocated to the loyalty programme
are recognised at a point in time when the customer uses the loyalty points or if the points expire.

The Group operates customer loyalty schemes which are deemed to be material rights to the customer. The Group
recognises the deferred income balances arising through the operation of such loyalty schemes by deferring a
proportion of restaurant revenue based on the proportionate stand alone selling prices of the material right, which is
calculated using the value of the discount and the expected customer redemption records, and the goods sold in the
restaurant. Revenue is deferred and is recognised as revenue when the Group has fulfilled its obligations to supply the
discounted or free of charge products under the terms of the programme or when it is no longer p0$SIb|e that the
points under the programme can be redeemed as the points expire.

Royalty income and Franchise fees
The performance obligation is the licence to trade in the market using the group’s intellectual property. Revenues are
allocated to the licence and this is recognised over the period of the agreement.

Initial franchise fees billed to the customer are not deemed to be a distinct performance obligation and as a result, the
amounts are allocated to the licence performance obligation and as a result, it is recognised as deferred income and is
recognised as revenue overtime of the agreement.

Royalty income is received based on a percentage of total restaurant sales in accordance with the substance of the
relevant MFA for that market. Royalty income is recognised on an accruals basis in line with restaurant sales. This is
in line with the exemption in IFRS 15 which allows sales based royalties to be booked as and when the subsequent
sale occurs.

Grocery sales
The performance obligation is the sale of goods to distributors. Revenue is recognised at a point in time when control
passes over to the distributor.

Recognition of revenue arising from the sale of grocery products depends on the individual terms of the sales
agreement, the transfer usually occurs when the goods are delivered to the customer; however, for some international
shipments the transfer occurs on loading the goods onto the relevant carrier at the port.

2.16 Cost of sales

Cost of sales includes those costs directly attributable to the provision of goods and services to customers. Receipts
from suppliers in respect of volume-based rebates and other incentives are recorded within cost of sales as the group
becomes entitled to receive the rebate. Where there is a short term timing difference between the rebate becoming
contractually due and the receipt from the supplier, the receivable is included within other receivables.
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217 Leases
2.17.1 Leases - as lessor

At inception or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component and one or more additional lease or non-
lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract applying IFRS 15. When the Group acts as a
lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating lease.

To classify each lease, the Group makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers substantially all of the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the case, then the lease is a finance lease;
if not, then it is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the Group considers certain indicators such as whether
the lease is for the major part of the economic life of the asset.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease separately.
It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease,
not with reference to the underlying asset. The Group applies the derecognition and impairment requirements in IFRS
9 to the net investment in the lease (see the financial instruments note). The Group further regularly reviews estimated
unguaranteed residual values used in calculating the gross investment in the lease. The Group recognises lease
payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term as part of ‘other
operating income'. ’

Generally, the accounting policies applicable to the Group as a lessor in the comparative period under IAS 17 were
not different from IFRS 16.

2.17.2 Leases - as lessee

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a

lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group

assesses whether:

. the contract involves the use of an identified asset - this may be specified explicitly or implicitly, and should be
physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. If the supplier has a
substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified;

. the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the
period of use; and
. the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Group has this right when it has the decision-making

rights that are most relevant to changing how and what purposes the asset is used. In rare cases where the
decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the Group has the right to direct
the use of the asset if either:

- the Group has the right to operate the asset; or

- the Group designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will be used.

This policy is applied to contracts entered into, or changed, on or after 25 February 2019.
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2.17 Leases (continued)
2.17.2 Leases - as lessee (continued)

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the
net present value of the following lease payments:

- fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

- variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

- amounts expected to be payable by the group under residual value guarantees;

- the exercise price of a purchase option if the group is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

- payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the group is reasonably certain to exercise the termination option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of the
liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being
the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, there is a change in the Group's estimate
of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, if the Group changes its assessment of
whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or if there is a revised in-substance fixed lease
payment.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset, to the extent that the right-of-use asset is reduced to nil, with any further adjustment required from
the remeasurement being recorded in profit or loss.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the group:

- where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received,

- uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by some of
the group, which do not have recent third party financing; and

- makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg term, country, currency and security.
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2.17 Leases (continued)
2.17.2 Leases - as lessee (continued)

The group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease payments based on an index or rate, which are not
included in the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate
take effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over
the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the International Accounting Standards Board issued amendments to IFRS
16 Leases to allow lessees not to account for rent concessions as lease modifications if they are a direct consequence
of COVID-19 and meet certain conditions. As a lessee we have applied the practical expedient and are not required to
assess whether eligible rent concessions are lease modifications. Accordingly, where the Group has agreed
concessions in the form of a one-off reduction in rent, they have been accounted for as a variable lease payment and
have been recognised in profit or loss.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

- the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

- any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received,
- any initial direct costs; and

- restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the group is reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life. The
right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the
lease liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are
recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of
12 months or less. Low-value assets comprise IT and other equipment and small items of office furniture.

2.18 Financing income and expenses

Financing expenses include interest payable, finance charges on shares classified as liabilities and finance charges
on lease liabilities (prior to 24 February 2019 finance charges on finance leases under IAS 17) recognised in profit or
loss using the effective interest method, unwinding of the discount on provisions, and net foreign exchange losses that
are recognised in the income statement (see foreign currency accounting policy).

Financing income comprise interest receivable on funds invested, dividend income, interest income on lease
receivables (prior to 25 February 2019 unearned finance income) and net foreign exchange gains.

Interest income and interest payable is recognised in profit or loss as it accrues, using the effective interest method.
Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis.
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2.19 Borrowing costs
The Group does not construct material qualifying assets and therefore borrowing costs are expensed in the period
they are incurred.

2.20 Taxation

Tax on profit or loss for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax is recognised in the
income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Income tax for the period is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

The Group does not recognise deferred tax liabilities, or deferred tax assets, on temporary differences associated with:
the initial recognition of goodwill; the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit other than in a business combination, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that
they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future. It is the Group's policy to reinvest undistributed profits arising
in group companies.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised. The carrying amount of the deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
statement of financial position date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same tax authority. Current tax assets and liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legal enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.21 Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’'s business that represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations that has been disposed of or is held for sale, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale. Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or when the operation meets
the criteria to be classified as held for sale, if earlier. When an operation is classified as a discontinued operation, the
comparative income statement is restated as if the operation has been discontinued from the start of the comparative
period.
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2.22 Exceptional items
Items that are, in aggregate, material in size or nature and not typical of ordinary trading are presented as exceptional
items within their relevant income statement line.

The separate reporting of exceptional items helps provide an indication of underlying trading performance of the
Group. The principal items that would be considered as to if they are exceptional items are:

- Costs arising from significant strategy changes that are not considered by the Group to be part of the normal
operating costs of the business. These costs may include restructuring and other associated costs (only where there is
a significant or wholesale restructuring programme)

- Impairment of goodwill

- Impairment of assets or ROU assets when featuring Covid-19 inclusive forecasts

- Profit / (loss) on disposal of subsidiary undertakings

- Negative goodwill

See note 7 for further details.

2.23 Government Grants

The Group has accessed government support measures in the geographies in which it operates, including employee
furlough schemes. In accordance with IAS 20, the funding received is recognised in the period.

The grants are recognised at fair value when the Group has reasonable assurance that it will comply with any
conditions attached to the grant and that the grant will be received. The funding received is included within the cash
flows from operating activities in the consolidated statement of cash flows.

3 Accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures.

The estimates and judgements that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial period are as follows:

31 Key sources of estimation uncertainty
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made various estimates, however, there
are no major sources of estimation uncertainty.

3.2 Critical judgements in applying the Group's accounting policies
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made various judgements, however,
none of these have been considered to be critical judgements.
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4 Revenue
2021 2020
£'000s £'000s
The Group's revenue comprises:
Restaurant sales 617,877 1,057,745
Grocery sales 32,873 24,574
Royalties and franchise fees 14,216 13,114

664,966 1,095,433

2021 2020
£'000s £'000s

The Group's revenue comprises:
Products and services transferred at a point in time 650,750 1,082,319
Products and services transferred over time 14,216 13,114

664,966 1,095,433

Geographical Analysis of Revenue
All restaurant revenue for the period was derived from sales in the UK, Ireland, Australia, USA, Canada, New Zealand, and
India. '

Grocery revenue for the period was derived from sales in the UK, Ireland, Australia, USA, Canada, New Zealand, Malaysia,
Singapore and United Arab Emirates.

Royalties and franchise fee revenue was derived from Canada, Australia, New Zealand, Fiji, Malaysia, Singapore, United
Arab Emirates, Qatar, Oman, Bahrain, Zimbabwe, Mauritius, Zambia, Pakistan, Saudi Arabia and Bangladesh.

2021 2020
£'000s £'000s

The Group's revenue comprises:
UK & Ireland ) 440,884 835,294
North America 73,809 103,990
Australia and New Zealand ) 139,272 136,619
Other 11,001 19,530

664,966 1,095,433

Revenue streams:

Restaurant sales

The performance obligations are the goods sold from the restaurant, and in some markets, the Group runs a loyalty
programme, which is deemed to be a material right to the customer. Revenues allocated to the goods sold from the
restaurant are recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains the goods, and revenues allocated to the loyalty
programme are recognised at a point in time when the customer uses the loyalty points or if the points expire. Revenue is
allocated to performance obligations based on standalone selling prices.

Grocery sales
The performance obligation is the sale of goods to distributors. Revenue is recognised at a point in time when control is
transferred to the distributor.

Royalty income and Franchise fees

The performance obligation is the licence to trade in the market. Revenues are allocated to the licence and this is
recognised over the time of the agreement. The initial franchise fee is not considered as a distinct performance obligation
and as a result, the amounts billed to customers for this are allocated to the licence performance obligation and recognised
over the time of the agreement.
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4 Revenue (continued)

Contract balances
The following table provides information about opening and closing contract liability balances from contracts with customers:

2021 2020
Current £'000s £'000s
“Contract liability 21,751 16,625

The contract liability balance primarily relate to the loyalty programmes in place for restaurant sales and the initial franchise
fee received from customers for access to intellectual property, marketing services and branded materials. The majority of
the contract liability is expected to recognised as revenue within 12 months.

The amount of revenue recognised in current period that was included in the deferred income balance at the beginning of

the period was £3,991k. In addition, the deferred income balance increased due to cash received, excluding amounts
recognised as revenue during the period of £9,061k.

5 Other operating income

2021 2020

£'000s £'000s

Rental income ' 118 102
Other operating income 5,455 4. 427
5,573 4,529

6 Loss or profit before tax
The following amounts were expensed or credited during the period:

2021 2020

£'000s £'000s

Depreciation of plant, property and equipment (76,498) (81,747)
Amortisation of intangible assets (26,386) (26,480)
Depreciation of right of use asset (50,365) (52,076)
Impairment loss on trade receivables ’ (1,539) (210)
Impairment loss on non current assets (12,275) (21,117)
Impairment of goodwill - (39,100)
Loss on disposal of plant, property and equipment (157) (9,467)

7 Exceptional items : ' 2021 2020
£000s £'000s

Exceptional items comprise the following: Note

Impairment of goodwill 16.1 - (39,100)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangibles 15, 16.2 (3,482) (17,515)
Impairment of ROU assets 18 (2,762) (3,602)
Impairment of investment in associates 20 (6,031) (1,900)
(12,275) (62,117)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and ROU assets have been incurred with the main factor being updating the

forecasted cash flows to include revised Covid-19 assumptions to reflect the escalation of the pandemic. This has resulted
in local restaurant level CGU impairments. The exceptional items have been charged to the 'Administrative expenses' line

item.
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8 Auditor's remuneration

The Group paid the following amounts to its auditor in respect of the audit of the financial statements and for services
provided to the Group:

2021 2020

£'000s £'000s

Fees payable to the Group's auditor for these financial statements (233) (238)
Audit of financial statements of subsidiaries of the company (505) (540)
Total audit fees (738) (778)
Taxation compliance services (78) (91)
Other tax advisory services (253) (733)
Total audit and non-audit fees (1,069) (1,602)

9 Staff numbers and costs
The average number of persons employed by the Group (including directors) during the period, analysed by category, was
as follows:

Average number of Nandoca's employed by category 2021 2020
Directors 5 6
Restaurant operatives and management 19,770 21,680
Administration 682 726

' 20,457 22,412

The aggregate payroll costs of these persons (including directors) were as follows:

2021 2020

£'000s £'000s

Wages and salaries* (243,032) (348,401)
Social security costs (18,148) (21,777)
Share based payments (see note 27) (161) 48
Contributions to defined pension contribution plan (6,166) (6,603)

(267,507) (376,733)

*Government grant funds of £71.4m has been netted against the wages and salaries. The most significant component was
the UK Job Retention Scheme.

10 Directors' remuneration

2021 2020

£'000s £'000s

Directors' remuneration (1,301) (2,157)
Pension contributions (1 (M
(1,302) (2,158)

The remuneration of the highest paid director was £531k (2020: £693k), and pension contributions of £1k (2020: £1k) were
made on the Director's behalf. During the period, benefits were accruing to one (2020: one) director under the defined
contribution scheme.

11 Financial income

2021 2020

Note £'000s £'000s

Fair value movement in derivative liability 29 - 38
Interest income - 1,276 1,658
Foreign exchange gain - 568 -
1,844 1,696
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12 Financial expense

2021 2020
Note £'000s £'000s
Iinterest expense - (67,673) (63,847)
Interest expense on lease liability 18 (30,782) (32,019)
Foreign exchange loss - - (510)
(98,455) (96,376)
Borrowing costs capitalised to qualifying assets amounted to £Nil (2020: £Nil).
13 Income tax expense
2021 2020
£'000s £'000s
Income Tax Expense
Corporation tax 9,680 (13,748)
Adjustments for prior periods 148 1,272
Withholding tax (1,155) (919)
8,673 (13,395)
Deferred Tax Expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 7,832 641
Change in tax rate (352) (81)
Adjustment in respect of prior period (374) (347)
’ 7,106 213
Total tax credit / (expense) 15,779 (13,182)
Reconciliation of effective tax rate
2021 2020
£'000s £'000s
(Loss)/Profit before taxation (241,797) (99,421)
Tax using the UK corporation tax rate of 19% (2019: 19%) 45,941 18,890
Reconciling items:
Adjustments in respect of prior periods (226) 925
Non-deductible expenses (including share based payment, interest restrictions and short (721) (765)
lease premium relief)
Ineligible depreciation (3,152) (892)
Movement in un-recognised deferred tax (23,508) (23,077)
Non-deductible IP amortisation (4,477) (4,843)
Impairment of goodwill and investments (1,426) (7,606)
Non-taxable income (3) 213
Withholding tax (1,155) (919)
Difference in overseas tax rate 4,858 4973
Change in tax rate on deferred tax balances (352) (81)

15,779 (13.182)
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14 Reconciliation of Net Debt
This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movement in net debt for each of the periods presented.

2021 2020
£000s £'000s
Net debt
Cash and cash equivalents 119,697 82,693
Other interest bearing loans and borrowings due within 1 year (12,824) (13,104)
Other interest bearing loans and borrowings due after 1 year (358,575) (296,066)
Loans due to related parties due after 1 year (697,799) (644,318)
Net debt before IFRS 16 (949,501) (870,795)
Current lease liability (43,091) (65,784)
Non-current lease liability (393,193) (396,498)
Net debt (1,385,785) (1,333,077)
Net debt as at| Cash flows Non-cash movements| Net debt as
23 February at 28
2020 Interest Other February
accretion 2021
£'000s '£'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s
Cash and cash equivalents 82,693 37,448 - (444) 119,697
Other interest bearing loans and
borrowings due within 1 year (13,104) 11,668 (14,192) 2,804 (12,824)
Other interest bearing loans and
borrowings due after 1 year (296,066) (60,000) - (2,509) (358,575)
Loans due to related parties due after 1
year (644,318) - (53,481) - (697,799)
Total before Impact of IFRS16 (870,795) (10,884) (67,673) (149) (949,501)
Current lease liability (65,784) 62,693 - (40,000) (43,091)
Non-current lease liability (396,498) - (30,782) 34,087 (393,193)
Total (1,333,077) 51,809 (98,455) (6,062) (1,385,785)
Net debt as at| Cash flows Non-cash movements| Net debt as
24 February, at 23
2019 Interest Other, February
accretion 2020
£'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s
Cash and cash equivalents 193,029 (110,336) - - 82,693
Other interest bearing loans and
borrowings due within 1 year (13,991) 11,021 (11,929) 1,795 (13,104)
Other interest bearing loans and
borrowings due after 1 year (313,230) 20,000 - (2,836) (296,066)
Loans due to related parties due within 1
year (125,872) 127,691 (1,819) - -
Loans due to related parties due after 1
year (596,277) - (48,860) 819 (644,318)
Total before Impact of IFRS16
(856,341) 48,376 {62,608) (222) (870,795)
Current lease liability - 69,300 - (135,084) (65,784)
Non-current lease liability - - (32,019) (364,479) (396,498)
Total (856,341) 117,676]  (94,627) (499,785)| (1,333,077)
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15 Property, plant and equipment

Freehold Land Leasehold Plant and Fixtures & Motor vehicles Construction Total
and buildings improvements equipment fittings in progress
£'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s

Costs 2020
Balance at 24 February 2019 4,383 . 459,747 243,909 37,316 267 878 746,500
Additions 14,977 37,347 38,396 4,861 70 345 95,996
Transfers - - - - - - -
Disposals - (21,229) (6,447) (189) (1) - (27,866)
Effects of movement in foreign exchange - (432) (1,617) (2,325) (4) (68) (4,446)
Balance at 23 February 2020 19,360 475,433 274,241 39,663 332 1,155 810,184
Costs 2021
Balance beginning of current year 19,360 475,433 274,241 39,663 332 1,155 810,184
Additions - 22,521 27,117 3,369 6 - 53,013
Transfers - 267 (267) - - - -
Disposals - (15,088) (4,257) (3,283) - (333) (22,961)
Effects of movement in foreign exchange 3 (3,489) 359 2,641 (4) (140) ~ (630)
Balance at 28 February 2021 19,363 479 644 297,193 42,390 334 682 839,606

45



Nando's Group Holdings Limited
Annual report and statutory consolidated financial statements
28 February 2021

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

15 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Freehold Land Leasehold Plant and Fixtures & Motor vehicles Construction Total
and buildings improvements equipment fittings in progress
£'000s £'000s £'000s " £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s

Accumulated depreciation and impairment '
Balance at 24 February 2019 (167) (229,155) (127,262) (14,226) (226) - (371,036)
Depreciation charge in the year (1,475) (43,008) (31,411) (5.814) (39) - (81,747)
Impairment losses - (12,871) (2,792) (1,632) - - (17,295)
Reversal of impairment losses ' - - - 571 - - 571
Disposals - 13,934 4,316 166 - - 18,416
Effects of movement in foreign exchange 1 726 1,152 1,146 5 - 3,030
Balance at 23 February 2020 (1,641) (270,374) (155,997) (19,789) (260) - (448,061)
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 2021
Depreciation charge in the year (490) (37,170) (33,037) (5,751) (50) - (76,498)
Impairment losses - (3,119) (341) (21) - - (3,481)
Reversal of impairment losses - 1,134 - ’ - - - 1,134
Disposals - 14,936 4,770 3,154 - - 22,860
Effects of movement in foreign exchange (3) 1,827 (416) (1,038) (2) - 368
Balance at 28 February 2021 (2,134) (292,766) (185,021) (23 445) (312) - (503,678)
Opening carrying value at beginning of prior period 4,216 230,592 116,647 23,090 41 878 375,464
Opening carrying value at beginning of current period 17,719 205,059 118,244 19,874 72 1,155 362,123
Closing carrying value at end of current period 17,229 186,878 112,172 18,945 22 682 335,928

Additions during the current period include £221k (2020: £390k) additions as a result of business combinations described in note 17.

Impairment tests were performed due to facts and circumstances applicable to certain restaurants following a review for impairment triggers across the estate in each market. The
forecasts included the expected impact of Covid-19 on our restaurants, including the short-term closure of most restaurants as well as the delayed reopening of other restaurants.
Most outcomes were binary with either no impairment arising or with the carrying value of the assets being impaired in full, with little judgement or estimation uncertainty being
involved. Restaurants that were previously impaired were reviewed again and where the performance had significantly improved, and in exceptional cases, these impairments
were reversed. Impairment losses of £3,481k (2020: £17,295k) relate to individual restaurant CGUs which are considered fully impaired. The recoverable amount for each
impairment review is based on a value in use calculation and a summary of the key assumptions used in the VIU calculation are given in Note 16.1. The expense has been
included in administrative expenses within the statement of comprehensive income, as an exceptional item (note 7), as the impairments were taken due to Covid-19 inclusive
forecasts.
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16 Intangible assets

16.1

Intangible assets is made up of the following:

Goodwill
Other intangible assets

Goodwill

Cost

Balance beginning of comparative year
Additions

Subsidiaries sold

Effects of movement in foreign exchange
Balance at end of comparative year

Cost

Balance beginning of current year
Additions

Disposals

Effects of movement in foreign exchange
Balance at end of current year

Accumulated impairment

Balance beginning of comparative year.

Disposals

Impairment losses

Effects of movement in foreign exchange
Balance at end of comparative year
Impairment losses

Disposals

Effects of movement in foreign exchange
Balance at end of current year
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Note
16.1
16.2

Opening carrying value at beginning of prior period

Opening carrying value at beginning of current period

Closing carrying value at end of current period

2021
£'000s

285,197
340,805

2020
£'000s

285,471
366,181

626,102

651,652

Total
£'000s

418,442
273

(2,231)
416,484

416,484
62

(961)

(280)
415,305

(91,938)

(39,100)
25

(131,013)
961

(56)

(130,108)

326,504
285,471

285,197

Goodwill has decreased from £285.5m to £285.2m. This movement is largely as a result of movements in foreign
currencies of £0.3m.

Goodwill considered significant in comparison to the Group’s total carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated to

cash generating units or groups of cash generating units referred to as markets as follows:

United Kingdom and Ireland
North America

Australia and New Zealand
Other

2021 2020

£'000s £'000s
259,003 259,003
250 250
16,379 16,594
9,565 9,624
285,197 285,471

The recoverable amounts of goodwill acquired in a business combination are measured annually. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal (FVLDC) and its value in use (VIU). Goodwill is
assessed for impairment on an annual basis. Management have considered both VIU and FVLDC in determining the
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount for each impairment review is based on a value in use calculation.
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16.1 Goodwill (continued)

The assessment of value in use has been based on cash flow forecasts as derived from forecast EBITDA in the Group
strategic plan which have then been extrapolated and adjusted for forecast capital expenditure and tax. The forecasts
are for 3 years starting from the end of the current financial year, which have been extrapolated to years 4 and 5 for
modelling purposes. A number of assumptions have been utilised in calculating these cash flows, including sales
growth projections, budgeted gross margins, direct and indirect cost growth rates and expected capital expenditure
levels. In line with IFRS requirements, capital and non capital expenditure relating to maintaining the assets in their
current condition has been included whereas forecast capex for enhancing assets and new restaurant openings has
been excluded along with the incremental cash flows that such enhancements would be expected to generate.
Similarly, where current costs exclusively relate to the future openings of new restaurants, these have been excluded
from the value in use calculation. Goodwill is allocated to, and tested for impairment at, market level as this is the level
at which the performance of the goodwill arises and can be assessed. The disclosures provided have been aggregated
to the region in which the market resides in line with the way the Group results are considered.

Additionally, the impact of Covid-19 has been assessed and the group has prepared financial forecasts incorporating
the impact of Covid-19 and the Government enforced lockdown period as well as the anticipated slow recovery to pre
Covid-19 trading levels.

After applying these assumptions, the five-year cash flows have been discounted using the weighted average cost of
capital (WACC). The terminal value is based on the discounted fifth year forecast cash flows taking into account
expectations of growth thereafter. The WACC has been provided by a third-party valuation specialist and reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset in question.

A summary of the key assumptions used in the VIU calculation are given below:-

UK & Ireland North Australia Other
America and New

Zealand
Long-term growth rate - 2021 2.0% 1.9% 19-21% 2.0-3.8%
Long-term growth rate - 2020 2.0% 20-21% 1.8-21% 2.0-3.9%
WACC Discount rates (pre tax) - 2021 11.0% 11.4-12.6% 11.5-12.3% 11.4-14.0%
WACC Discount rates (pre tax) - 2020 8.4% 8.9-95% 10.3-10.5% 9.3-15.4%

The discount rates have increased due to increased market premiums as a result of Covid-19. The results of the
impairment review do not require an impairment to be recognised in any of the markets. In prior year, impairment of
£39.1m was recognised. Management have based their assumptions on past experience and external sources of
information, such as industry sector reports and market expectations.

The results of the impairment review show that there is headroom for all these regions and therefore management are
comfortable with the outcome of the impairment review.

Sensitivity analysis

As part of the impairment review, management considered reasonably possible changes in key assumptions.
Sensitivity analysis has been performed on each of three of the key assumptions with the other variables held constant.
The Directors consider that for each market a reasonably possible change would be an increase of 1% in the discount
rate, a 0.5% decrease in the long term growth rate or a decrease of 5% in the discounted cash flows throughout the
forecast period and into perpetuity. Such a change does not resuit in material impairment charges arising in any of the
markets.

The assumptions are considered to be realistic but it is possible that impairment would arise in markets if the any of the
sensitivities were changed 'significantly beyond these amounts. However, such a significant change is beyond what
management consider plausible, and no reasonably possible change in assumptions would give rise to a material
impairment.
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16.2 Other intangible assets

Intellectual Reacquired Development  Software Total
property rights costs

patents and

trademarks
Cost £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s
Balance at 24 February 2019 - 481,833 11,260 3,092 556 496,741
Additions 2 203 533 347 1,085
Transfers - - - - -
Disposals - (176) - @ - (179
Effects of movement in foreign exchange (202) (554) - (31) (787)
Balance at 23 February 2020 481,633 10,733 3,625 869 496,860
Cost
Balance beginning of current year 481,633 10,733 3,625 869 496,860
Additions 2) 81 360 184 623
Transfers - - - - -
Disposals (11) (382) (2,611) 21 (3,025)
Effects of movement in foreign exchange 715 668 (1) (220) 1,162
Balance at 28 February 2021 482,335 11,100 1,373 812 495,620
Accumulated Amortisation and impairment
Balance at 24 February 2019 (96,347) (6,813) (1,384) (12) (104,556)
Transfers - - - - -
Amortisation charge in the year (24,089) (1,098) (1,103) (190) (26,480)
Impairment losses (65) (155) - - (220)
Disposals 2 174 - 3 179
Effects of movement in foreign exchange . (82) 474 - 6 398
Balance at 23 February 2020 (120,581) (7,418) (2,487) (193) (130,679)
Accumulated Amortisation and impairment
Amortisation charge in the year (24,447) (1,096) (659) (184) (26,386)
Reversal of impairment losses ) - 67 - - 67
Impairment losses (D - - - m
Disposals 11 383 2,611 (5) 3,000
Effects of movement in foreign exchange (50) (683) - 17 (716)
Balance at 28 February 2021 (145,068) (8,747) (535) (365) (154,715)
Opening carrying value at beginning of 385,486 4,447 1,708 544 392,185
prior period
Opening carrying value at beginning of 361,052 3,315 1,138 676 366,181
current period
Closing carrying value at end of current 337,267 2,353 838 447 340,905

period

Additions during the current period include £78k (2020: £6k) additions as a result of business combinations described
in note 17.
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The amortisation is recognised in the income statement within Cost of sales and Other operating expenses. The

impairment expense has been included in administrative expenses within the statement of comprehensive income, as
an exceptional item (note 7), as the impairments were taken due to Covid-19 inclusive forecasts.

Impaiment testing - Intellectual Property
Intellectual property is amortised over 20 years. At the end of the current financial period the IP has a remaining useful

life of 14 years. Management have reviewed the value and performance of the IP, considering both internal and.

external indicators. From this review no impairment indicators have been identified. As part of the goodwill impairment
testing, the IP has been allocated to a group of CGUs and no impairments were proposed as a result of the testing. The
carrying value of the IP at year end was £329.0m (2020: £352.5m) and the amortisation charge for the period was
£23.5m (2020: £23.5m). -

17 Business Combinations

The Group accounted for various business combinations, as a result of acquiring 6 franchise restaurants during the
period. The acquisitions reflect management's continued intent to strengthen the management of the Nando's brand
and further development of the business.

The acquisition of 4 franchised restaurants in Australia and 2 franchised restaurants in NZ took place at various dates
during the period for the total consideration of £318k, acquiring net identifiable assets of £257k resulting in goodwill of
£61k being recognised. The net identifiable assets assumed are considered to constitute a business, as defined. As
none of the individual transactions were significant to the Group, these acquisitions have been aggregated for the
purposes of the disclosures below.

The goodwill has arisen on acquisition because the fair value of the consideration is greater than the value of the net
assets acquired and represents the additional value relating to the staff and market opportunity that come with the
acquired businesses, as well as the opportunity to leverage our existing support functions across these operations. The
assets and liabilities identified as part of the business combinations are measured at acquisition date fair value.

The acquisition in Australia of 4 restaurants was the most significant acquisition during the period.

The following are the resuits of the acquirees since the acquisition date included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the reporting period:

2021
£'000s

Revenue 3,862
Restaurant operating profit 274

The Profit / (Loss) for the period attributable to Nando's Group Holdings Limited will not have changed materially had
the acquisition of the business combination taken place at the beginning of the year.

In the prior year the Group reacquired 6 franchise restaurants in Australia at various dates during the period for the total
consideration of £465k, acquiring net identifiable assets of £192k resulting in goodwill of £273k being recognised.

Fair value on acquisition A ’ 2021 2020
£000s £000s
(a) Consideration transferred

Cash 318 465
Cash purchase adjustments and transfer fees - -
Total cash consideration 318 465
Fair value of original investment - -
Total consideration 318 465
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17 Business Combinations (continued)

(b) Assets acquired and liabilities assumed at date of acquisition
Cash and cash equivalents ' - -
Trade receivables - .

Inventories - -
Property, plant and equipment 221 390
Intangible assets - reacquired rights 78 6
Trade payables - -
Provisions - -
Bank overdraft (43) (204)

Deferred tax liability - 2
Loans and advances - -

Net identifiable assets and liabilities 256 192

(c) Net cash outflow on acquisition of business

Consideration in cash 318 465
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired (net of overdrafts) 43 204
361 669

(d) Goodwill relating to the acquisition of businesses
Cash 318 465
Fair value of initial Investment - -
Purchase adjustments and transfer fees - -
Other adjustments '

318 465

Comprised of:
Net identifiable tangible assets 178 186
Intangible assets - reacquired rights © 78 6
Intangible assets - Goodwill 62 273
318 465
18 Leases

18.1 Leases as a lessee

This note provides information for leases where the group is a lessee.

(i) Amounts recognised in the balance sheet:

Property Other Total

Right of use asset £'000s £'000s £'000s
Right of use assets is made up of the following:
Balance at 24 February 2019 449,420 - 449420
Additions to right of use assets during FY20 25,008 - 25,008
Disposals to right of use assets during FY20 (654) - (654)
Impairment of right of use assets during FY20 (3,602) - (3,602)
Depreciation charge for prior year (52,076) - (52,076)
Effects of movement in foreign exchange 683 - 683
Balance at 23 February 2020 418,779 - 418,779
Additions to right of use assets during FY21 10,804 - 10,804
Modifications to right of use assets during FY21 (19,200) (19,200)
Disposals to right of use assets during FY21 (699) - (699)
Impairment of right of use assets during FY21 (2,762) - (2,762) .
Depreciation charge for the year (50,365) - (50,365)
Effects of movement in foreign exchange 21,085 - 21,085

Balance at 28 February 2021 ‘ 377,642 - 377,642
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2021 2020
£'000s £'000s

Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows

Less than one year

One to five year

More than five years

Total undiscounted lease liabilities

Total Lease Liability

of which:

Current Lease Liability
Non-Current Lease Liability

Lease Liability

Opening Total Lease Liability

Additions to Lease Liability

Modifications of Lease Liability

Interest Expense

Covid-19 related rent concessions
Rental Payments

Effects of movement in foreign exchange
Closing Total Lease Liability

(il) Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss:

Depreciation charge of right of use assets
Depreciation charge for the year

Other charges recognised due to leases
Interest expense (included in finance cost)

Expense relating to short-term leases (included in cost of goods sold and

administrative expenses)

Expense relating to leases of low-value assets that are not shown above
as short-term leases (included in administrative expenses)

Expense relating to variable lease payments not included in lease

liabilities (included in administrative expenses)

The total cash outflow for leases in FY21 was £62.7m.

73,982 73,223
257,547 267,154
291,803 318,108
623,332 658,485

(436,284) (462,282)

(43,091)  (65,784)
(393,193) (396,498)

Total

£'000s
(462,282)
(9,694)
(3.154)
(30,782)
8.282

62,693
(1,347)
(436,284)

2021 2020
£000s  £000s
(50,365)  (52,076)

2021 2020

£'000s £'000s
(30,782)  (32,019)

- (31)
(17) (256)

(4,494) (2,813)
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(iii) The group's leasing activities and how these are accounted for:

. The group leases various restaurants and offices. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 12 months to
30 years, but may have extension options as described in (v) below.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The group allocates the consideration in the contract to
the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range.of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Impairment tests were performed on ROU assets due to facts and circumstances applicable to certain restaurants
following a review for impairment triggers across the estate in each market. The forecasts included the expected impact
of Covid-19 on our restaurants, including the short-term closure of most restaurants as well as the delayed reopening of
other restaurants. ROU asset impairment losses of £2,762k (2020: £3,602k) relate to individual restaurant CGUs which
are considered fully impaired. The recoverable amount for each impairment review is based on a value in use
calculation and a summary of the key assumptions used in the VIU calculation are given in Note 16.1. The expense has
been included in administrative expenses within the statement of comprehensive income, as an exceptional item (note
7)., as the impairments were taken due to Covid-19 inclusive forecasts.

(iv) Variable lease payments

Some property leases contain variable payment terms that are linked to sales generated from a store. For individual
stores, up to 100% of lease payments are on the basis of variable payment terms with percentages ranging from 6% to
23% of sales. Variable payment terms are used for a variety of reasons, including minimising the fixed costs base for
newly established stores. Variable lease payments that depend on sales are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which the condition that triggers those payments occurs.

A 10% increase in sales across all stores in the group with such variable lease contracts would not result in any
increases in total lease payments as all leases were below minimum sales threshold.

(v) Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of property and equipment leases across the group. These
are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the group’s operations. The
majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable only by the group and not by the respective lessor.
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18.2 Leases as a lessor

This note provides information for leases where the group holds the head lease and sub-leases as finance leases to

another party.

(i) Amounts recognised in the balance sheet:

Net investment in the leases

Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows

Less than one year

One to five year

More than five years

Total undiscounted lease payments to be received at year end

Total Net investment in the leases

of which:

Current net investment in the leases
Non-Current net investment in the leases

These balances have been included in the Other debtors line items within note 23.

(i) Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss:

Interest income on lease receivables

2021 2020
£000s  £000s
2.401 2,666
7.329 6,593
1,304 3.082

1124 12,341
0,445 9,628
2119 2,025
7.326 7.603

2021 2020
£000s  £000s
866 898
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The Group has the following investments in subsidiaries, all subsidiaries have been included in the consolidated financial

statements of the Group:

Subsidiary Registered Address Ownership |Country of |Class of Principal activity
undertaking 2021 | 2020 [Incorporati |Shares Held
on
Nando's Group Limited|St Mary's House, 42 Vicarage 100% | 100% |UK Ordinary Holding company
Crescent, London, SW11 3LD
Nando's Finance St Mary's House, 42 Vicarage 100% | 100% |UK Ordinary Holding company
Limited ' Crescent, London, SW11 3LD
Nando's Chickenland |St Mary's House, 42 Vicarage [99.7%]99.7%|UK Ordinary Casual Dining
Limited 2 Crescent, London, SW11 3LD Restaurants
Nando's Chicken St Mary's House, 42 Vicarage |[99.7%]99.7%|UK Ordinary Holding company for lease
Limited 3 Crescent, London, SW11 3LD
Vicar Lane Bradford |St Mary's House, 42 Vicarage |[99.7%|99.7%|UK Ordinary Holding company for lease
Limited 2 Crescent, London, SW11 3LD
Broomco Chando's St Mary's House, 42 Vicarage |[99.7%]99.7%|UK Ordinary Holding company for lease
Limited 3 Crescent, London, SW11 3LD
Broomco (4061) St Mary's House, 42 Vicarage |99.7%]99.7%|UK Ordinary Holding company
Limited 3 Crescent, London, SW11 3LD
Nando's Chickenland |2nd Floor, 11/12 Warrington 99.7%| 99.7% |Republic of |Ordinary Casual Dining
Ireland Limited 3 Place, Dublin 2 Ireland Restaurants
Nando's Limited St Mary's House, 42 Vicarage 100% { 100% |UK Ordinary Management, IP company
Crescent, London, SW11 3LD & Franchisor
Nando’s Brand JVCo |[St Mary's House, 42 Vicarage 100% | 67% UK Ordinary Management company
Limited * Crescent, London, SW11 3LD
Nando’s Restaurant  |St Mary's House, 42 Vicarage 100%{ 100% |UK Ordinary Holding company
Group Holdings Crescent, London, SW11 3LD
Limited
Nando's Restaurants 819 7th Street, Washington, DC | 100% | 100% JUSA Ordinary Casual Dining
Group Inc ® 20001 Restaurants
1251671 B.C. Ltd ° Suite 2100, Scotia Plaza 100%| N/a |Canada Ordinary Management company
40 King St. West
Toronto, Ontario, Canada
Nando's Australia Pty |40 Mollison Street, Abbotsford , | 100% | 100% |Australia Ordinary Casual Dining
Limited 3067 Restaurants
Nando's Chickenland {5865 Kennedy Road, 100% | 100% |Canada Ordinary Holding company
Canada Inc Mississauga, ON, L4Z 2G3
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Australia (Pty) Ltd "'

VIC 3067 Australia

Subsidiary Registered Address Ownership [Country of |Class of Principal activity

undertaking 2021 | 2020 {Incorporati [Shares Held

Nando's PERI PERI  |5865 Kennedy Road, 100% | 100% |Canada Ordinary Casual Dining

Canada Inc ® Mississauga, ON, L4Z 2G3 ) Restaurants

Nando's Chickenland |5865 Kennedy Road, 100% | 100% |Canada Ordinary Casual Dining

Central Limited ® Mississauga, ON, L4Z 2G3 Restaurants

Nando's Chickenland [5865 Kennedy Road, 100% | 100% [Canada Ordinary Casual Dining

West Limited & Mississauga, ON, L4Z 2G3 Restaurants

8489963 Canada Inc & |5865 Kennedy Road, 100% | 100% |Canada Ordinary Casual Dining
Mississauga, ON, L4Z 2G3 ) Restaurants

2418836 Ontario Inc ® |5865 Kennedy Road, 100% | 100% [Canada Ordinary Casual Dining
Mississauga, ON, L4Z 2G3 Restaurants

Nando's Services (Pty)[10A Victoria Road, Lorentzville, | 100% | 100% [South Africa [Ordinary Management company

Limited Johannesburg, 2094

Nando's New Zealand |Franchise Accountants, 2g 100% | 100% |New Ordinary Casual Dining

Limited Amera Place, Huntington Park, Zealand Restaurants
Auckland, 2013 , New Zealand

Nando's New Zealand |Franchise Accountants, 2g 100% | 100% |New Ordinary Casual Dining

Restaurants Limited ° {Amera Place, Huntington Park, Zealand Restaurants
Auckland, 2013 , New Zealand

Nando's Sub Continent|St Mary's House, 42 Vicarage | 100% | 100% [UK Ordinary Holding company

Holdings Limited Crescent, London, SW11 3LD

Nando's Karnataka G9/10, Ascendas Park Square | 100% | 100% {india Ordinary Casual Dining

Restaurants Private Mall, ITPL, Whitefield, Restaurants

Limited ® Bangalore-560066, Karnataka

Janpath Restaurants |Shop No. 315-316, Plot No. 3 | 99% | 99% lindia Ordinary Casual Dining

Private Limited ® DLF Promenade Mall, Nelson Restaurants
Mandela Marg, Vasant Kunj,
New Delhi-110070

Nando's Services St Mary's House, 42 Vicarage 100% | 100% [UK Ordinary Management company

Limited ™° Crescent, London, SW11 3LD

Nando's Grocery St Mary's House, 42 Vicarage | 100% | 100% |UK Ordinary Retail food products

International Limited |Crescent, London, SW11 3LD

Nando's Peri Peri USA |819 7th Street Nw Floor 2 100% | 100% [UK Ordinary Retail food products

Inc M Washington, DC 20001

Nando's Peri Peri 40 Mollison Street, Abbotsford | 100% | 100% |UK Ordinary Retail food products

1 - Owned by a subsidiary, Nando's Group Limited.

2 - 99.7% owned by a subsidiary, Nando's Finance Limited
3 - 100% owned by a 99.7% (2020: 99.7%) owned subsidiary, Nando's Chickenland Limited

4 - Jointly owned by subsidiaries, Nando's Chickenland Limited and Nando's Limited

5 - Owned by a subsidiary, Nando's Restaurants Group Holdings Limited.

6 - Owned by a subsidiary, Nando's Chickenland Canada Inc.

7 - Owned by a subsidiary, Nando's New Zealand Limited.

8 - Owned by a subsidiary, Nando's Sub Continent Holdings Limited.

9 - Owned by a subsidiary, Nando's Services India Private Limited.

10 - Owned by a subsidiary, Nando's Limited.

11 - Owned by a subsidiary, Nando's Grocery International Limited
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19 Investment in subsidiaries (continued)

The following subsidiaries will take advantage of the audit exemption set out within section 479A of the Companies Act
2006 for the year ended 28 February 2021.

Subsidiary undertaking Company |Registered address
| number

Nando's Chicken Limited 00166821 |St Mary's House, 42 Vicarage Crescent, London,
SwW11 3LD

Vicar Lane Bradford Limited 04505426 |St Mary's House, 42 Vicarage Crescent, London,
Sw11 3LD

Nando's Group Limited 06530077 ]St Mary's House, 42 Vicarage Crescent, London,
SW11 3LD

Nando's Brand JVCo Limited 09392876 |St Mary's House, 42 Vicarage Crescent, London,
SW11 3LD

Nando’s Restaurant Group Holdings Limited 09389199 |St Mary's House, 42 Vicarage Crescent, London,
SwW11 3LD

Broomco Chandos Limited 06036167 |St Mary's House, 42 Vicarage Crescent, London,
Sw11 3LD

Broomco (4061) Limited 06011406 |St Mary's House, 42 Vicarage Crescent, London,
SW11 3LD

As required, Nando's Group Holdings Limited, the parent company, guarantees all outstanding liabilities to which the
subsidiary companies listed in the tables above are subject at the end of the financial year, until they are satisfied in full.

. This is in accordance with Section 479C of the Companies Act 2006. The guarantee is enforceable against Nando's Group

Holdings Limited as the parent undertaking, by any person to whom the subsidiary companies listed above
is liable in respect of those liabilities.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests (NCI)

Name of Subsidiary % of NClI  Profit allocated to NCI Accumulated non-
ownership controlling interests
held
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
£'000s £000s  £'000s £'000s
Nando's Chickenland Limited 0.3% 0.3% (248) 132 1,214 1,462
(248) 132 1,214 1,462

Summarised Financial Information
Nando's Chickenland

2021 2020
£'000s £'000s
Revenue 409,987 801,490
(Loss)/profit after tax (101,634) 53,666
Current assets 52,768 30,873
Current liabilities . (506,375) (451,409)
Non-current liabilities (317,996) (310,826)

Significant restrictions
There are no significant restrictions on the company’s or subsidiary’'s ability to access or use the assets and settle the
liabilities of the Group.

Financial support
The Group has not given any financial support to a consolidated structured entity.
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20 Investments accounted for using the equity method

Ownership

Investments Registered Address 2021 | 2020 |Country of |Class of Principal activity
accounted for using Incorporati |Shares Held
the equity method on
Nando's Chickenland |Level 8, Symphony House, 49% | 49% |Malaysia Ordinary Casual Dining
Malaysia SDN.BHD Block D13, Pusat Dagangan Restaurants

Dana 1, Jalan PJU 1 A/46,

47301, Petaling Jaya, Selangor

Darul Ehsan
Nando's Singapore 16 Raffles Quay, No. 11-03 49% | 49% |Singapore |Ordinary Casual Dining
PTE. Limited Hong Leong Building, Restaurants

' Singapore, 048581 '

Nando's Grocery 40 Mollison Street, Abbotsford 20% | 20% |Australia Ordinary Retail food products
Australia VIC 3067 Australia

The investments in Malaysia and Singapore have a different period end of 31 December to the Group due to local
compliance reasons. . .

There are no restrictions on the ability of associates or joint ventures to transfer funds to the Group in the form of cash
dividends, or to repay loans or advances made by the entity. The debt of Nando's Chickenland Malaysia has been
guaranteed by Nando's Group Holdings Limited.

The Group's interests in equity accounted for investments are is analysed as follows:

Investments Share of profit/(loss) of
equity-accounted
investees, net of tax

2021 2020

£'000s £'000s

Nando's Chickenland Malaysia SDN.BHD (1,373) 6)
Nando's Singapore PTE. Limited (160) (1,100)

Nando's Grocery Australia

(1,533) (1,106)

Nando's Nando’s
Nando's Chickenland Singapore
Carrying value of investment in Joint Ventures Grocery Malaysia PTE.
and Associates Australia  SDN.BHD Limited Total
£'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s
Group investment as at 24 February 2019 10 18,484 3,837 22,331
Additional investment ’ - - 168 168
Dividends received (10) - - (10)
Impairment loss - (1,900) - (1,900)
2020 Share of profit/(loss) of equity-accounted investees, net of tax - (6) (1,100) (1,106)
Group investment as at 23 February 2020 - 16,578 2,905 19,483
Movement for the 2021 year
Additional investment in associate - - 167 167
Impairment loss - (5.214) (817) (6,031)
2021 Share of profit/(loss) of equity-accounted investees, net of tax - (1,373) (160) (1,533)
Group investment as at 28 February 2021 - 9,991 2,095 12,086

Investments are accounted for using the equity accounting method. Covid-19 was an indicator of impairment therefore the

investment carrying values were measured against the higher of the value in use and the fair value.
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The assessment of value in use has been based on cash flow forecasts as derived from forecast EBITDA in the Group
strategic plan which have then been extrapolated and adjusted for forecast capital expenditure and tax. The forecasts are
for 3 years starting from the end of the current financial year, which have been extrapolated to years 4 and 5 for modelling
purposes. A number of assumptions have been utilised in calculating these cash flows, including sales growth projections,
budgeted gross margins, direct and indirect cost growth rates and expected capital expenditure levels. In line with IFRS
requirements, capital and non capital expenditure relating to maintaining the assets in their current condition has been
included whereas forecast capex for enhancing assets and new restaurant openings has been excluded along with the
incremental cash flows that such enhancements would be expected to generate. Similarly, where current costs exclusively
relate to the future openings of new restaurants, these have been excluded from the value in use calculation. After applying
these assumptions, the five-year cash flows have been discounted using the weighted average cost of capital (WACC). The
terminal value is based on the discounted fifth year forecast cash flows taking into account expectations of growth
thereafter. The WACC has been provided by a third-party valuation specialist and reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset in question.

The results of the impairment review require that an impairment loss is recognised to reduce the investment value in
Malaysia by £5.2m and Singapore by £0.8m. The impairment losses are due to the expected impact from Covid-19.
Management have based their assumptions on past experience and external sources of information, such as industry
sector reports and market expectations.

A summary of the key assumptions used in the VIU calculation are given below:-

Malaysia Malaysia Singapore Singapore
(2021) . (2020) (2021) (2020)
Long-term growth rate 2.2% 2.0% 1.4% 1.3%

WACC Discount rates (pre tax) 12.3% 11.8% 11.3% 9.5%

Summarised Financial Information
Nando's Chickenland Nando's Singapore

Malaysia SDN.BHD PTE. Limited

2021 2020 2021 2020
£'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s

Revenue 24,224 37177 6,227 9,577
Depreciation and amortisation (6,567) (5,830) (2,215) (2,062)
Interest income 17 26 0 -
Interest expense (1,121) (1,350) (116) (104)
Income tax 367 (402) - -
Profit/(loss) after tax (2,802) 12) (326) (2,267)
Other comprehensive income - - - -
Total comprehensive income / (expense) (2,802) (12) (326) (2,267)
Non-current assets 22,259 - 25,924 4,383 5315
Current assets (less cash) 3,493 3,724 1,388 1,402
Cash and cash equivalents . 799 1,343 467 382
Current liabilities (11,644) (9,807) (3,066) (3,628)

Non-current liabilities (11,809) (15,165) (1,743) (2,017)
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21 Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following: Assets Liabilities
2021 2020 2021 2020
£'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s
Property, plant and equipment 1,668 - (4,460) (1,967)
Intangible assets 180 134 - -
Provisions - - - -
Tax value of loss carry-forwards 3,196 - - -
Other short term timing differences 4,908 88 - -
Tax assets/(liabilities) 9,952 222 (4,460) (1,967)
Movement in deferred tax Property, Intangible Provisions Unused tax Other Total
Plant & Assets losses short term
Equipment timing
differences
£'000s £000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s
Balance at beginning of prior period (3,705) 158 498 - 1,150 (1,899)
Charged to income 1,738 (14) (498) - (1,013) 213
Foreign Exchange translation difference - (10) - - (49) (59)
Balance at beginning of current period (1,967) 134 - - 88 (1,745)
Charged to income (1,093) 35 - 3,196 4,968 7,106
Foreign Exchange translation difference 268 11 - - (148) 131
Balance at end of current period (2,792) 180 - 3,196 4,908 5,492

As at 28 February 2021, the Group has an unrecognized deferred tax asset of 61,585k (2020 £47,750k) relating to carried
forward losses. The unrecognised deferred tax asset disclosed relates to unused tax losses of £ 225,396k (2020:
£175,420k). Such losses are appraised at each reporting date based upon the expected taxable profits from the Group’s
strategic planning process. In determining the probability of available taxable profits against which to utilise these losses
the Group focuses on the short term forecasts given the risk associated with the longer term plans. Accordingly, these
deferred tax assets remain unrecognized. In the US and Canada, after 20 years any remaining losses expire and could no
longer be used to reduce taxable income.

The Group also has £30,053k (2020: £20,438k) of unrecognised deferred tax assets relating to other deductible timing
differences.

A reduction in the UK corporate tax rate to 19% (effective from 1 April 2017) was substantively enacted on 25 October
2015, a further reduction to 17% (effective 1 April 2020) was announced in the Budget on 16 March 2016. This additional
rate decrease was later reversed (substantively enacted on 17 March 2020). A tax rate increase to 25% (effective from' 1
April 2023) was announced in the Budget on 3 March 2021. This will have a consequential effect on the group’s future tax
charge. If this rate change had been substantively enacted at the current balance sheet date the deferred tax asset would
have increased by £1.0m.

22 Inventories

2021 2020

£'000s £'000s

Raw materials and consumables 5,158 5173
Finished goods 2,988 1,407
8,146 6,580

Raw materials, consumables and changes in finished goods recognised as cost of sales in the period amounted to
£177,003k (2020: £266,953k). There were no material charges or credits from either the write-down of inventories to net
realisable value nor from reversals. Any such amounts are included in Cost of Sales. All of the inventory is expected to be
recoverable within 12 months.
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23 Trade and other receivables

2021 2020
Current £'000s £'000s
Amounts due from related undertakings 4.451 2,993
Trade receivables due from third parties 6,191 7,885
Other debtors 14,153 13,228
Prepayments ' 8,227 8,972
Total current 33,022 33,078
Non-Current
Other trade receivables due from third parties 1,604 2,432
Other debtors 7,949 8,309
Prepayments - -
Total non-current 9,553 10,741

Included within Current and Non-Current Other debtors are amounts related to sub-leases (see note 18) and debtors due
from delivery partners. Related party details are provided in note 33.

24 Cash and cash equivalents

2021 2020
£'000s £'000s
Cash and cash equivalents 119,697 82,693
25 Other interest bearing, finance leases, non interest bearing loans and related party loans
2021 2020
£'000s £'000s
Non-current
Secured bank loans (356,263) (293,915)
Other loans (2,312) (2,151)
Total other interest bearing loans and borrowings (358,575) (296,066)
Loans due to related parties (697,799) (644,318)
Total other interest bearing loans and borrowings (1,056,374) (940,384)
Current liabilities
Current portion of secured bank loans (12,817) (12,983)
Other loans _ ) (121)
Total other interest bearing loans and borrowings (12,824) (13,104)
Total liabilities
Secured bank loans (369,080) (306,898)
Finance lease - -
Other loans (2,319) (2,272)
Loans due to related parties (697,799) (644,318)

(1,069,198)  (953,488)
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Secured bank loans
The bank loans relates to Nando's Finance Limited.

Bank loans: Nando's Finance Limited Term Loan A, B and Revolving facility

Nando’s Finance Limited has a £500m term loan facility which bears interest at LIBOR plus a margin between 1.5% and
2.75% with interest payable on a monthly or quarterly basis. Nando's Finance Limited also has available a £105m
revolving facility as well as the term loans facility, which continue to be available to the group until 2023 and 2024
respectively. There was £375m (2020: £315m) outstanding at the year end.

Included in bank loans are unamortised debt costs, relating to the above agreements, of £2.3m (2020: £3.4m). The full
cost in the year of amortised debt costs is disclosed in Note 12. This includes £1.2m (2020: £1.2m) of fees incurred in
arranging the amended loan agreement. '

The loans are secured by debentures and unlimited guarantees from Nando’'s Chickenland Limited and a first legal
charge over the short leasehold property held by Nando's Finance Limited and it's subsidiaries. The total value of
property held as security totals £164.6m (2020: £171.4m) and is included in note 15.

Other loans
Bank loan - Australia

Nando's Australia Pty Ltd has a fixed term bank facility which is available until May 2023, which bears interest at the
Bank Bill Swap Bid Rate (BBSY).

Loéns due to related parties (Group)

Yellowwoods Holdings SARL Deep Discounted Bonds (DDB), continue to be available to the Group, the effective interest
payable at the time of maturity of the DDB's have effective interest rates between 3.5% and 8.5%, are unsecured and
mature on various dates ranging from May 2022 - May 2027.
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Group

The bank loans, related party loans and other loans included in other interest-bearing loans, non-interest bearing loans
and borrowings are summarised in the table of terms and conditions below.

Currency Nominal Yearof Face value Carrying Face value Carrying
interest rate maturity . amount amount
2021 2021 2020 2020
£'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s
Secured loan
Bank loan - term GBP LIBOR 2023 50,000 49,012 50,000 49,218
loan A +margin
Bank loan - term GBP " LIBOR 2024 250,000 245,068 250,000 242,680
loan B +margin
Bank loan - GBP LIBOR 2023 75,000 75,000 15,000 15,000
revolving facility +margin
Related party
Yellowwoods GBP 8.50% 2026 51,000 81,822 . 51,000 75,482
Treasury 2 SARL .
Yellowwoods GBP 8.35% 2025 104,250 166,067 104,250 153,354
Treasury 2 SARL
Yellowwoods GBP 8.25% 2024 93,250 147,881 93,250 136,438
Treasury 2 SARL
Yellowwoods GBP 8.00% 2022 120,000 187,101 120,000 173,099
Treasury 2 SARL
Yellowwoods GBP 8.25% 2024 46,618 70,811 46,618 65,343
Treasury 2 SARL
Yellowwoods GBP 8.50% 2027 26,000 38,576 26,000 35,508
Treasury 2 SARL
Yellowwoods AUD BBSY + 2023 5,541 5,541 5,094 5,094
Treasury 2 SARL 3.5% ’
Other loans
Bank loan - Australia AUD BBSY 2023 2,239 2,239 2,067 2,067

Other loans 80 80 205 205

823,978 1,069,198 763,484 953,488

This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Group's interest-bearing loans and non-interest bearing
loans and borrowings, which are measured at amortised cost. For more information about the Group's exposure to
interest rate and foreign currency risk, see note 29.

Face value of debt represents amounts initially borrowed, . while the carrying value of debt includes accrued interest
where the terms of the instrument require repayment of interest at the end of the loan term.
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26 Trade and other payables

2021 2020
£'000s £'000s

Current
Trade payable$ due to third parties (48,551) (50,157)
Other payables due to third parties (2,096) (3,367)
Contract liability (21,751) (16,625)
Other taxation and social security . (17,610) (25,246)
Accruals and other creditors (75,198) (67,203)

(165,206) (162,598)
Non-current
Accruals and other creditors (3,056) (8,664)

(168,262) (171,262)

Included within accruals and other creditors is £3,056k (2020: £8,664k) for the Group which is expected to be settled in
more than 12 months. Related party details are provided in note 33.

27 Share based payments

The Group has share-based payment schemes in place, (i) the Group Partnership scheme and (ii) Partnership VI
scheme.

Group Partnership Scheme
The Group had formed an employee share scheme in 2017 which was designed to remunerate the employees of the
Group with shares in the Company.

The Group Partnership scheme was deemed to be equity settled, therefore the fair value of amounts payable to the
employees is recognised as an expense in the employing company with a corresponding increase in equity to represent
the contribution received.

Under the employee share scheme the employees held the shares immediately on award, but there was a designated
compulsory holding period running from November 2016 to November 2020, during which employees waived their voting
and dividend rights in respect of their shares and may not transfer, charge or otherwise dispose of their shares without
consent of the Company. The shares granted to employees under the scheme would have vest under performance
related criteria as well as individual personal targets; if they did not vest, then they would be returned to the Company.

The Group retained the beneficial rights to the unvested shares held by employees. As the shares are not publicly
traded and therefore cannot be easily realised, a separate arrangement had been put into place between the employees
and L Perlman SECS, which would have acquired the shares after vesting under a put and call. The acquisition of the
shares by L Perlman SECS would have been settled in cash.

Shares in issue to the employees of Nando's Group Holdings Limited's subsidiaries:

2021 2020

. Shares Shares
Shares at beginning of the period , 10,240,964 10,240,964
B1 shares issued during the period - -
B2 shares issued during the period - -
B3 shares issued during the period - -
Redeemed during the period (10,240,964) -
Outstanding shares at end of the period - 10,240,964

Measurement of fair values

The fair value of the B Shares has been measured using the Monte Carlo valuation model. Service and non market
performance conditions attached to the arrangements were not taken into account in measuring fair value. The inputs
used in the measurement of the fair values at grant date of the B Shares were as follows:
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Grant Date  Grant Date

17 January 16 November

2018 2016

Fair value (£) 1.13 1.04
Share price (£) 11.16 10.77
Hurdle (Exercise price) (£) 12.26 12.26
Capped value (average) (£) 16.10 16.10
Expected average exercise date 3.7 years 4.0 years
Risk free rate 0.87% 0.54%
Expected volatility 30% 30%
Expense recognised in profit and loss in relation to Group Partnership Scheme: 2021 2020
£'000s £'000s

Share-based payment expense / (income) ‘ 161 (48)

Due to the mandatory holding period, no shares were exercisable at the end of the period. These share based payment
schemes have been recognised in accordance with IFRS 2 and the accounting policy described in 2.12. The scheme
was closed during the year. All the shares were redeemed as the scheme did not pay out.

Partnership VIl

During the prior year, Nando's Chickenland Limited issued 770,000 B2019 shares to employees and to directors. The
Nando's Chickenland Partnership scheme VIl has a designated compulsory holding period running from March 2018 to
February 2021, during which employees and directors waive their voting and dividend rights in respect of their shares
and may not transfer, charge or otherwise dispose of their shares without the consent of the Company. The shares
purchased by employees under Partnership VII shall vest under a ratcheted performance-related criteria, whereby below
a minimum level of EBITDA no vesting shall occur. The consideration of vested shares shall be based on a defined
EBITDA multiple valuation methodology. The scheme is accounted for as an equity-settled share-based payment
transaction. The grant date fair value of the shares was not considered material. 770,000 shares were acquired by the
Company at par value on 12 February 2021.

Expense recognised in profit and loss in relation to Partnership VI and Partnership Vil 2021 2020
schemes:

£'000s £'000s

Share-based payment expense - -
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28 Provisions

Onerous Asset Other Total
Lease Retirement
Obligation
£'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s
Balance at beginning of prior period (2,174) - (1,818) (3,992)
Provisions made during the year - (4,247) (1,161) (5,408)
Reclassified on transition to IFRS 16 1,860 - - 1,860
Utilised during the period - - 434 434
Provisions reversed during the year 175 - 466 641
Unwinding of discounted amount - (343) - (343)
Effects of movement in foreign exchange ' 139 - 90 229
Balance at beginning of current period - (4,590) (1,989) (6,579)
Provisions made during the year .- - (200) (200)
Utilised during the period . - - 389 389
Provisions reversed during the year - 348 24 372
Unwinding of discounted amount . - (189) - (189)
FX translation reserve - (22) (79) (101)
Balance at end of current period - (4,453) (1,855) (6,308)
2020
Non-current provisions - (4,247) (301) (4,548)
Current provisions . - (343) (1,688) (2,031)
- (4,590) (1,989) (6,579)
2021
Non-current provisions - (4,264) (55) (4,319)
Current provisions - (189) (1,800) (1,989)
- (4,453) (1,855) (6,308)

Onerous lease provision

Onerous lease provisions related to leases where the obligations under the lease arrangement exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received. The provision is recorded by comparing the estimated future cash flows associated
with a particular restaurant with the minimum committed future lease payments. Where the minimum future lease
payments exceed the expected estimated future cash flows, a provision was created to reflect the onerous element of
the lease obligation. In determining the existence of an onerous lease obligation, a degree of uncertainty exists in-the
estimation of future cash flows associated with such sites. The value of the provision was assessed at each financial
reporting date. At the start of the prior year, due to IFRS 16 requirements, the onerous lease provision has been written
down against the Right Of Use asset.

Asset retirement obligation

Asset retirement obligation is related to expected future costs associated with exiting leases and vacating premises. The
associated cash outflows are expected to occur at the date we exit the lease arrangements in place. The present value
of these expected future costs is recorded as a provision, and the provision is unwound overtime.

The present value of these ‘costs is added to the Right Of Use asset.

Other provisions )
Other provisions are made up of a number of individually insignificant provisions, from matters such as legal claims. The
value of each provision is assessed individually at each financial reporting date.
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29 Financial risk management

The Group's operations expose it to a number of financial risks. A risk management programme has been established to
protect the Group against the potential adverse effects of these financial risks. There has been no significant change in
these financial risks since the prior period. As a holding entity, the Company is not exposed the risks outlined below.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from customers and investment securities.

A small amount of the Group’s revenue transactions are completed with the granting of credit because payment is after
the receipt of goods or services. This primarily relates to the Grocery and Franchise revenue streams. Prior to sales on
credit, customers are assessed for creditworthiness and where appropriate, the Group obtains security for its exposure
to the risk of default. Credit limited are also imposed on customers and reviewed regularly.

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk totals £22.2m (2020: £19.2m) and relates to third party debt. £3.5m
(2020: £3.5m) of debt is overdue by more than 30 days and having considered the historical payment behaviour and
customer credit risk, £1.4m has been provided as the expected loss allowance.

Outstanding trade receivables are regularly reviewed to monitor any changes in credit risk with concentrations of credit
risk considered to be limited given that the Group's customer base is large and unrelated.

The Group applies the simplified approach and records lifetime expected credit losses for trade receivables using
historical cash collection data for periods of at least 36 months wherever possible and grouped into various customer
segments based on product or customer type. The historical loss rates are adjusted where macroeconomic factors, for
example changes in interest rates or unemployment rates, or other commercial factors are expected to have a significant
impact when determining future expected credit loss rates. Most notably for the 2021 financial year, this included
adjusting for the economic impacts of COVID-19.

For trade receivables the expected credit loss provision is calculated using a provision matrix, in which the provision
increases as balances age.

A summary of the Group's exposure to credit risk for trade receivables by credit risk rating grade is not presented given
the expected credit loss is not material.

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows.

Expected credit loss of trade receivables Total
£'000s
Balance at 24 February 2019 310
Impairment loss recognised 210
Impairment loss reversed
. Amounts written off (192)
Balance at 23 February 2020 328
Balance at 23 February 2020 328
Impairment loss recognised 1,539
Impairment loss reversed ' -
Amounts written off (470)
Balance at 28 February 2021 1,397
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group
maintains sufficient cash reserves. Management review cash flow forecasts on a regular basis to determine whether the
Group has sufficient cash reserves to meet future working capital requirements and to take advantage of business
opportunities. The Group’s funding strategy includes use of overdraft facilities, detailed cash flow forecasting and
monitoring the maturity of financial liabilities to avoid the risk of a shortage of funds. The Group has access to sufficient
funding and banking facilities. The Group had cash of £119.7m (2020: £82.7m) as at the period end.
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The majority of the secured bank loans relate to borrowing within the principal UK market that in.the current period
accounts for the majority of trade. Secured bank loans total £369.1m (2020: £306.9m) of which £369.1m (2020:
£306.9m) relates to the UK Nando's market.

As at the 28 February 2021 the Group has total undrawn facilities of £30m (2020: £90m) available, refer note 25.

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities:

Group 2021 Carrying Contractual Oto<1lyr 1to2yrs 2to5yrs Over 5 yrs
Amount Cash flow

Secured bank loans (369,080) (407,067)  (25,132) (25,132) (356,803) -

Related party loans (697,799) (912,497) - (205,659) (517,944) (188,894)

Trade payables and (168,262) (168,262) (165,206) (3,056) - -

other payables

Other Loans (2,319) (2,319) - - (2,319) -

Derivative financial liabilities

Derivative Financial Liability

(1,237,460)  (1,490,145) (190,338)  (233,847) (877,066) (188,894)

Group 2020 ) Carrying Contractual Oto<1iyr 1to2yrs 2to5yrs Over 5 yrs
Non-derivative financial £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s
Secured bank loans ' (306,898) (358,456)  (25,689) (25,275) (307,492) -
Related party loans (644,318) (917,613) - - (496,250) (421,363)
Trade payables and (171,262) (171,262) (162,598) (8,664) - -
other payables

Other Loans (2,272) (2,272) - - (2,272) -
Derivative financial liabilities

Derivative Financial Liability (98) - -

(1,124,848) (1,449,603) (188,287) (33,939) (806,014) (421,363)

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of our financial instruments will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. The Group is exposed to the following market risks: foreign currency risk and interest rate risk.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the value of a financial commitment of recognised asset or liability will
fluctuate due to changes in foreign currency rates. The Group is mostly exposed to foreign currency risk on net
investments in foreign subsidiaries. There are no hedging arrangements in place to mitigate this exposure but the Group
manages the exchange risk on translation of investments in foreign companies with borrowings denominated in the
same currency.
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Within foreign restaurant markets, foreign currency exposure is managed because revenue is generated in the local
functional currency and the vast proportion of the costs incurred are in the same- currency denomination. Remaining
foreign exchange exposure in the Group arises on intergroup trade, which is limited to management fees and royalties
on franchise income. Within the Grocery business, where practicable, foreign currency exposure on manufacturing
costs is reduced by collecting customer revenue denominated in the same currency as those manufacturing costs.

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

A 10% strengthening of the following currencies against the pound sterling would have increased / (decreased) equity by
the amounts shown below, the weakening of the same currencies will have equal and opposite effects. The
strengthening of these currencies would not have been a significant effect to Profit / (loss). This calculation assumes
that the change occurred at the balance sheet date and had been applied to risk exposures existing at that date. This
analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular other exchange rates and interest rates, remain constant:

2021 2020
Effect on equity £'000s £'000s
AUD 157 (854)
usD (1,237) (2,307)
CAD 3,349 3,083
Other (668) (972)
Total 1,601 (1,050)

Interest rate risk
The Company's exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates is Nil (2017: Nil)

The Group has £1,069m (2020: £953m) of interest bearing loans and borrowings of which £698m (2020: £644m) is a
fixed rate deep discounted bond and has no interest rate sensitivity. The remaining debt is made of various loans and
facilities with variable rates (refer note 25).

£'000s % of

Variable rate borrowings 371,399 35%
Other long term borrowings 697,799 65%
1,069,198 100%

Sensitivity analysis

An increase or (decrease) of 100 basis points in interest rates as at 28 February 2021 would have
increased/(decreased) interest paid under this agreement by £3.75m (2020: £3.2m). This calculation assumes that the
change occurred at the balance sheet date and had been applied to risk exposures existing at that date.

There would be no other material impact on reserves as a result of changes in interest rate.
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Capital management
The following table summarises the capital of the Group as at 28 February 2021 (and as at 23 February 2020):

2021 2020
£000s .  £000s

Net Debt 949,501 870,795
Equity (139,053) (11,930)
810,448 858,865

The Group’s policy is to use banking arrangements and loans from related parties to meet anticipated funding
requirements. These borrowings, together with cash generated from operations, are loaned internally or contributed as
equity to certain subsidiaries if they require funding for new restaurants. The Group does not routinely make additional
issues of capital, other than for the purpose of raising finance to fund significant acquisitions or developments.

Fair values -

The derivative liability is the only balance held at fair value, which is calculated by discounting the expected cash
outflows at the contract interest rate. The inputs used in these discounted cash flow calculations are at level 2 in the
hierarchy. ‘

Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

There are no level 3 assets or liabilities held and there are no transfers between classes during the period (or
comparative).

The fair values of all other financial instruments, included within trade and other receivables, or within financial liabilities,
are not considered to be materially different from their carrying amounts.

30 Derivative financial instruments

The Groups derivative financial instruments are carried at fair value in the financial statements:

2021 2020
£'000s £'000s
Derivative Financial Liability - (98)
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Share capital

2021 2020

Authorised Share Capital £'000s £'000s
77,777,778 (2020: 50,000,000) ordinary shares of £3.60 (2020: £3.60) each 280,000 180,000
Nil (2020: 10,777,537) ordinary B shares of £0.001 each - 11
280,000 180,011

Issued and fully paid for
77,777,778 (2020: 50,000,000) ordinary shares of £3.60 (2020: £3.60) each 280,000 180,000

Nil (2020: 10,240,964) ordinary B shares of £0.001 each - 10
280,000 180,010
Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding
Opening balance at beginning of current period 50,010 180,010
Share consolidation of nil shares (2020: 130,000,000) - (130,000)
Disposal of ordinary B shares (2020: nil) (10) -
Shares issued 27,777,778 (2020: nil) 27,778 -
Closing balance at end of current period 77,778 50,010

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one
vote per share at meetings of the Company.

Ordinary B shares are held by employees under share based scheme. The holders of ordinary B shares are not entitled
to receive any income or capital until the hurdle amount per share has been reached in respect of that ordinary B Share,
the detail relating to the hurdle amount is detailed in Note 27. The transfer of these shares is at the discretion of the
Directors of the Company. The scheme was closed during the year. All the shares were redeemed as the scheme did
not pay out.

During the prior year, the 180,000,000 ‘A’ shares in issue were consolidated into 50,000,000 'A' shares (a ratio of 3.6 to
1). During the current year the Company issued 27,777,778 ordinary shares of £3.60 each to its immediate parent L
Periman SECS, settled in cash.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations, as well as from the translation of liabilities that hedge the Company’s net
investment in a foreign subsidiary.

Capital contribution reserve

The Capital Contribution Reserve reflected the credit entries in respect of past share schemes, which resulted in a
corresponding charge to employee costs in previous accounting periods. As these schemes are now fully vested, the
balance on the reserve had been transferred to retained earnings in previous periods.

Own share reserve

Under the Group Partnership Scheme the company has issued shares to employees, employees of certain subsidiaries,
and employees of L Perlman SECS who are providing services to the Group. The schemes in place are detailed in Note
27. The company retains the beneficial rights of the shares required to settle rewards granted under equity-settled share-
based payment plans. The reserve had been transferred to retained earning reserve in previous periods.

Dividends
2021 2020
The following dividends were recognised during the period: £'000s £'000s
£0p (2020: £0.0p) per qualifying ordinary share - -
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32 Commitments and contingencies

Capital commitments
At the period end the Group has outstanding capital commitments in respect of capital expenditure contracted but not
provided for in the financial statements for £237k (2020: £2,167k).

The Company has no contingent liabilities.

33 Related parties
Nando’s Group Holding's Limited is a subsidiary of L Perilman SECS which is the ultimate parent and controlling party,

The Group has identified the following related parties, which have been disclosed accordingly;
All About Foods Limited: All About Foods Limited is a related party to group by virtue of the two parties having
common directors.
Yellowwoods Treasury: Yellowwoods Treasury 2 SARL is a related party to the group by virtue of the two parties
having common directors.

Group

Transactions with key management personnel

Key management personnel include directors of the company and senior managers across a number of companies
within the Group.

2021 2020

£'000s £'000s .
Key management remuneration including social security costs 5,024 5,810
Share based remuneration 59 (272)
Company contributions to money purchase pension plans 32 14
5,115 5,552
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33 Related parties (continued)

Related party balances
Related party trading receivables .
The Group have a trade receivable balance with All About Foods at period end of £1,449k (2020: £1,772k).

Deep discounted bonds

The Group have issued deep discounted bonds to Yellowwoods Treasury totalling £446,212k (2020: £445,700k). The
details and terms of the deep discounted bonds are disclosed in Note 25. Included in the carrying value of the deep
discounted bonds in note 25 is accrued interest payable of £251,140k (2020: £198,618k) in the Group.

Related party transactions
The Group have the following significant related party transactions:

Revenue
The Group have the following transactions with All About Foods. Sale of goods for the period totalled £14,098k (2020:
£10,547k) and royalty income received totalled £5,384k (2020: £1,409k).

Financial expense

The Group have incurred interest expense on the deep discounted bonds issued to Yellowwoods Treasury of £53,313k
(2020: £51,724k).
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Company Statement of Financial Position
as at 28 February 2021 (23 February 202Q)

Non-current assets

Investment in group companies
Investment in equity accounted investees
Loans due from inter-group parties

Loans due from related parties

Current assets

Debtors

Loans due from related parties
Loans due from inter-group parties
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Current liabilities

Creditors

Loans due to inter-group parties
Loans due to related parties

Non-current liabilities
Loans due to related parties

Total liabilities

Net assets

Equity

Share Capital

Share Based Payment Reserve
Retained Earnings

Total equity

The notes on pages 76 to 89 form an integral part of the financial statements.

Note
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Nando's Group Holdings Limited
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28 February 2021

Company registered number 06451677

2021 2020
£'000s £'000s
183,355 205,665
11,911 19,644
180,625 168,457
375,891 393,766
13,455 4,479
104,719 71,643
63,153 25,155
181,327 101,277
557,218 495,043
(514) (2,565)
(79,985) (68,373)
(80,499) (70,938)
(296,488)  (273,949)
(296,488) (273,949)
(376,987) (344,887)
180,231 150,156
280,000 180,010
3,529 3,368
(103,298) (33,222)
180,231 150,156

The financial statements on pages 74 to 75 were authorised by the Board of Directors on Z?[Q(Zl 2021 and were

signed on its behalf.

uL(/ A

uke Logan Tait
Director
Company registered number: 06451677
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity

Balance as at 24 February 2019
Changes in equity for 2020

Profit / (Loss) for the period

Issue of share capital

Equity Settled share based payments
Balance as at 23 February 2020

Profit / (Loss) for the period

Issue of share capital

Disposal of B shares

Equity Settled share based payments
Balance as at 28 February 2021

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements.

Nando's Group Holdings Limited
Annual report and statutory consolidated financial statements
28 February 2021

Company registered number 06451677

Share Capital  Share Based Retained  Total Equity
Payment earnings
Reserve (Profit & loss
reserve)
£000s £'000s £'000s £'000s
180,010 3,416 47,991 231,417
- - (81,213) (81,213)
. (48) - (48)
180,010 3,368 (33,222) 150,156
- - (70,076) (70,076)
100,000 - - 100,000
(10 - - (10)
- 161 - 161
280,000 3,529 (103,298) 180,231
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Notes to the financial statements

1 General information

Nando’s Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a private company, limited by shares, incorporated, registered and
domiciled in England. The registered number is 06451677 and the registered address is St Mary's House, 42 Vicarage
Crescent, Battersea, London, SW11 3LD.

The Company is a holding company for an international chain of casual dining restaurants.

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

21 Basis of preparation

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure
Framework (“FRS 101"). The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all
periods presented in these financial statements. In the transition to FRS 101 from Adopted IFRS, the Company has made no
measurement and recognition adjustments.

The principal accounting policies outlined below.

2.2 Disclosure exemptions adopted

In preparing these financial statements, the Company applies the recognition, measurement and disclosure requirements of
International Financial Reporting Standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, but makes
amendments where necessary in order to comply with Companies Act 2006 and has set out below where advantage of the
FRS 101 disclosure exemptions has been taken: ’

- A Cash Flow Statement and related notes;

- The effects of new but not yet effective IFRSs;

- Disclosures in respect of transactions with wholly owned subsidiaries;

- Disclosures in respect of the compensation of Key Management Personnel;

- Disclosures in respect of capital management;

- Disclosures of transactions with a management entity that provides key management personnel services to the company.

As permitted by section s408(3) of the Companies Act 2006, the company is exempt from the requirement to present its own
profit and loss account. As the consolidated financial statements of Nando's Group Holdings Limited include the equivalent
disclosures, the Company has also taken the exemptions under FRS 101 available in respect of the following disclosures.

- Certain disclosures required by IFRS 13 Fair Value' Measurement and the disclosures required by IFRS 7 Financial
Instrument Disclosures.

76



Nando's Group Holdings Limited
Annual report and statutory consolidated financial statements
28 February 2021
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2.3 Going Concern
Refer to note 1 in the Consolidated Financial Statements for further details on the preparation of the financial statements on a
going concern basis.

2.3 Standards issued and applied for the first time in 2021
The following new and revised Standards and Interpretations have been adopted in the current period. Unless otherwise
disclosed, their adoption has had no material impact on the amounts reported in these financial statements.

» Amendments to IFRS 16 ‘COVID-19 - related rent concessions’

« Amendments to ‘References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards’

« Amendments to IFRS 3 ‘Definition of a business’

» Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 ‘Definition of material’ '
» Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 ‘Interest rate benchmark reform’

2.4 Standards and interpretations issued and not yet effective

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 31 December 2020
reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the company. These standards are not expected to have a material
impact on the entity in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

2.5 Measurement Convention
The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis, as explained in the accounting policies below.

2.6 Investments

Investments in subsidiaries

The value of the investment in each subsidiary held by the Company is recorded at cost less any impairment in the
Company's balance sheet.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies. The investment in an associate is initially recognised at cost and adjusted for
the Company's share of in the net assets of the investee after the date of acquisition, and for any impairment in value (equity
method), except when the investment is classified as held-for-sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current assets held-for-sale
and discontinued operations. The Company recognises losses to the extent there is a legal or constructive obligation in
relation to those losses. ‘
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2.7 Foreign currencies

Foreign currencies transactions

Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for:

- exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings which are regarded as adjustments to interest costs, where those
interest costs qualify for capitalisation to assets under construction;

- exchange differences on loans to or from a foreign operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur and
therefore forms part of the net investment in the foreign operation, which are recognised initially in other comprehensive
income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the net investment.

2.8 Financial instruments

The Company classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial
liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. Financial instruments are
recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

2.8.1 Financial assets
Financial assets comprise cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables.

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated and are initially measured at fair value where there is a
significant financing component. Trade receivables without a significant financing component is initially measured at the
transaction price.

Trade receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost as they meet both of the following conditions:

- they are held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

- their contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Trade receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less provision for
impairment using the expected credit loss approach.

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECLs) on trade receivables using the simplified
expected credit loss model which is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Cbmpany changes its business model
for managing financial assets in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting
period following the change in the business model.

Foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.
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2.8 Financial instruments (policy applicable from 25 February 2018) (continued)

2.8.1 Financial assets (continued)

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when
estimating ECL, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue
cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's historical
experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30 days past due.
The company considers a financial asset to be in default when the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
company in full, without recourse by the company to actions such as realising security (if any is held) or the financial asset is
more than 90 days past due.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the company expects to receive). ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset. At each reporting
date, the company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-
impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is
no realistic prospect of recovery.

2.8.2 Financial liabilities (other than derivative financial instruments)

Financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings and trade and other payables. Financial liabilities are initially recognised
when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or
issue. Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense
and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised
in profit or loss.

2.8.3 Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the value of proceeds received, net of costs directly attributable to
the issue of the instruments.

Financial instruments issued by the company are treated as equity only to the extent that they meet the following two
conditions:

a. they include no contractual obligations upon the company to deliver cash or other financial assets or to exchange financial
assets or financial liabilities with another party under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the company; and

b. where the instrument will or may be settled in the company's own equity instruments, it is either a non-derivative that
includes no obligation to deliver a variable number of the company’s own equity instruments or is a derivative that will be
settled by the company’s exchanging a fixed amount of cash or other financial assets for a fixed number of its own equity
instruments.

To the extent that this definition is not met, the proceeds of issue are classified as a financial liability. Where the instrument so

classified takes the legal form of the company’s own shares, the amounts presented in these financial statements for called
up share capital exclude amounts in relation to those shares.
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2.8 Financial instruments

The Company classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial
liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. Financial instruments are
recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Company classifies its financial assets and liabilities in the following categories:
« Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss;
* Loans and receivables;
« Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss;
« Other financial liabilities.

Non derivative financial instruments
2.8.4 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents comprise short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. An investment with a maturity of three months or less is normally
classified as being short-term. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowing in current liabilities.

2.8.5 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method, less provision for impairment.

Trade receivables that are known to be uncollectible are written off by reducing the carrying amount directly. The other
receivables are assessed collectively to determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment has been incurred
but not yet been identified. For these receivables appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts is recognised.
The Company considers that there is evidence of impairment if any of the following indicators are present:

« Significant financial difficulties of the debtor
- Probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation
« Default or delinquency in payments

Interest on overdue trade receivables is recognised as it accrues.

2.8.6 Trade payables

Trade payables are measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method.

2.8.7 Bank overdrafts and interest-bearing borrowings

Bank overdrafts and interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial
liability.

Certain borrowings of the Company are deep-discounted bonds upon which no periodic interest is payable. Such borrowings
are accounted for at amortised cost using the effective interest rate of the bond over its life.

2.8.8 Non interest-bearing loans and borrowings

Non-interest loans are recognised initially at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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2.8.9 Inter-group financial instruments

Where the company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies within its
group, the company considers these to be insurance arrangements and accounts for them as such. In this respect, the
company treats the guarantee contract as a contingent liability until such time as it becomes probable that the company will
be required to make a payment under the guarantee.

2.8.10 Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the value of proceeds received, net of costs directly attributable to
the issue of the instruments.

2.8.11 Impairment of financial assets

All financial assets measured at amortised cost are assessed for indicators of impairment at each reporting date. These
impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss, unless the financial asset is measured at fair value and the fair value
adjustments are recognised in other comprehensive .income, in which case the impairment is recognised in other
comprehensive income to the extent that fair value adjustments exist. Any excess is recognised in profit or loss.

29 Borrowing costs

The company does not construct material qualifying assets and therefore borrowing costs are expensed in the period
they are incurred.

2.10 Taxation

Tax on profit or loss for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax is recognised in the
income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Income tax for the period is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

The Company does not recognise deferred tax liabilities, or deferred tax assets, on temporary differences associated
with: the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit other than in a
business combination, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised. The carrying amount of the deferred tax assets are reviewed at each statement
of financial position date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same tax authority. Current tax assets and liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legal enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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2.11. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses annually whether there is any indication that any of its assets have been impaired, other than
inventories and deferred tax assets. If such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated and compared to its
carrying value. Where it is impossible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the smallest cash generating unit to which the asset is allocated.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is recognised as revaluation decrease.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to
sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose
of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of
assets (the “cash-generating unit”).

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

2.12 Share based payment policy

Share-based payment arrangements in which the Company receives goods or services as consideration for its own equity
instruments are accounted for as equity-settled share-based payment transactions, regardless of how the equity instruments
are obtained by the Company. Share-based payment transactions in which the Company receives goods or services by
incurring a liability to transfer cash or other assets that is based on the price of the Company's equity instruments are
accounted for as cash-settled share-based payments. All current arrangements are equity-settled arrangements.

For the equity-settled schemes, the fair value of a share plan is recognised as an expense over the expected vesting period
with a corresponding entry to retained earnings. The fair value of the share plans is determined at the date of grant. Non-
market based vesting conditions (i.e. Group profitability targets) are taken into account in estimating the number of awards
likely to vest, which is reviewed at each accounting date up to the vesting date, at which point the estimate is adjusted to
reflect the actual awards issued. No adjustment for past service is made during the vesting date even if the options are
forfeited, or are not exercised. For share-based payment awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant date fair value of the
share-based payment is measured to reflect such conditions and there is no true-up for differences between expected and
actual outcomes.

The fair value of the share plan is measured using the Monte Carlo method.
Where the Company grants options over its own shares to the employees of its subsidiaries it recognises, in its individual
financial statements, an increase in the cost of investment in its subsidiaries equivalent to the equity-settled share-based

payment charge recognised in its consolidated financial statements with the corresponding credit being recognised directly in
equity.
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Accounting estirhates and judgements

The preparation of the company's financial statements }equires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
profit or loss. ‘

The estimates and judgements that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial period are as follows:

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the company’s accounting policies, management has made various estimates. Management
do not consider that any of these estimates have a significant effect on the consolidated financial statements. The key
area of estimation that has the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is the
review for the impairment of investment carrying values.

Critical judgements in applying the Company's accounting policies

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made various judgements. Those
which management has assessed to have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements have been discussed in the individual notes of the related financial statement line items. While subject to
some degree of judgement, this is not significant.
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4 Directors' remuneration

2021 2020

£'000s £'000s

Directors' remuneration (1,302) (2,157)
Pension contributions 1) (1)
) (1,303) (2,158)

The remuneration of the highest paid director was £531k (2020: £693k), and pension contributions of £1k (2020: £1k) were made on the Director's
behalf. During the period, benefits were accruing to one (2020: one) director under the defined contribution scheme.

5 Investments In subsidiaries and associates

5.1 Investments in subsidiaries 2021 2020
£'000s £'000s

Balance at the beginning of the period 205,665 263,543
Additional capital contribution during the period : 30,527 30,676
Share based payment contributions during the year _ 161 (48)
Impairment (52,998) (88,506)
Balance as the end of the period 183,355 205,665

The Company made additional capital contributions within the year, which related to investments made within the Australia, New Zealand, United
States and India markets.

The Company assesses the carrying value of its investments at each reporting date to determine whether this is objective evidence of impairment.
An impairment analysis has been performed across the individual investment values using a discounted cash flow methodology.

The result of this impairment review of the Company investment in subsidiaries require an impairment loss. The impairment loss of £53.0m (2020:
£88.5m) is a result of our assessment of the medium term returns for the Australia, New Zealand, US and India markets that can be generated
from our assets in those markets. The impairment losses are due to the expected impact from Covid-19. The recoverable amount in Australia, New
Zealand, US and India has been calculated using the VIU methodology.

A number of assumptions have been utilised in calcutating these cash flows, including sales growth projections, budgeted gross margins, direct and
indirect cost growth rates and expected capital expenditure levels. In line with IFRS requirements, capital and non capital expenditure relating to
maintaining the assets in their current condition has been included whereas forecast capital expenditure for enhancing assets and new restaurant
openings has been excluded along with the incremental cash flows that such enhancements would be expected to generate. Similarly, where
current costs exclusively relate to the future openings of new restaurants, these have ben excluded from the value in use calculation.

A summary of the key assumptions used in the VIU calculation are given below:-

Australia N2z us India
Long-term growth rate 21% 1.9% 1.9% 3.8%
WACC Discount rates (pre tax) 12.3% 11.5% 11.4% 14.0%
Subsidiary undertaking Registered Address Ownership Country of |Class of Principal activity
2021 2020 |Incorporatio |Shares Held
Nando's Group Limited St Mary's House, 42 100% 100% |UK Ordinary Holding company

Vicarage Crescent,
London, SW11 3LD
Nando's Chickenland Limited |St Mary's House, 42 99.7% 99.7% |UK Ordinary Casual Dining Restaurants
Vicarage Crescent,
London, SW11 3LD
Nando's Limited St Mary's House, 42 100% 100% |UK Ordinary Management, IP company & Franchisor
Vicarage Crescent,
London, SW11 3LD

Nando's Restaurant Group St Mary's House, 42 100% 100% jUK Ordinary ~ |Holding company
Holdings Limited Vicarage Crescent,
: London, SW11 3LD

Nando's Australia Pty Limited |40 Mollison Street, 100% 100% |Australia Ordinary Casual Dining Restaurants
Abbotsford , 3067

Nando’s Chickenland Canada |5865 Kennedy Road, 100% 100% [Canada Ordinary Holding company

Inc Mississauga, ON,
L4Z 2G3

Nando's Grocery International | St Mary's House, 42 100% 100% |UK Ordinary Retail food products

Limited Vicarage Crescent,
London, SW11 3LD

Nando’s Services (Pty) Limited | 10A Victoria Road, 100% 100% [South Africa |Ordinary Management company
Lorentzville,

Johannesburg, 2094
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5 Investments In subsidiaries and associates (continued)

5.1 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Subsidiary undertaking Registered Address Ownership Country of |Class of Principal activity
2021 2020 |Incorporatio [Shares Held
Nando's New Zealand Limited |Franchise 100% 100% |[New Zealand |Ordinary Casual Dining Restaurants
Accountants, 2g
Amera Place,
Auckland, 2013 , New
Zealand

Nando's Sub Continent St Mary's House, 42 100% 100% (UK Ordinary Holding company
Holdings Limited Vicarage Crescent,
London, SW11 3LD
Nando's Services Limited St Mary's House, 42 100% 100% (UK Ordinary Management company
Vicarage Crescent,
London, SW11 3LD

5.2 Investment in equity accounted investees

2021 2020
£'000s £'000s
Balance at the beginning of the period 19,644 22,349
Additional capital contribution during the period 221 301
Share of (loss) (1,533) (1,106)
impaiment (6,421) (1,800)
Balance as the end of the period 11,911 19,644
Investments Registered Address Ownership Country of [Class of Principal activity
2021 2020 |[Incorporatio [Shares Held
Nando's Services India Private |Flat 10, 1105-1106, 5% 5% |India Ordinary Casual Dining Restaurants
Limited Ashoka Estate, New
Delhi - 110001
Nando's Karnataka G9/10, Ascendas 5% 5% [india Ordinary Casual Dining Restaurants
Restaurants Private Limited Park Square Mall,
ITPL, Whitefield,
Nando's Chickenland Malaysia |Level 8, Symphony 49% 49% |Malaysia Ordinary Casual Dining Restaurants
SDN.BHD House, Block D13,
Pusat Dagangan
Nando's Singapore PTE. 16 Raffles Quay, No. 49% 49% |Singapore Ordinary Casual Dining Restaurants
Limited 11-03 Hong Leong :
Building, Singapore,

The investments in Malaysia and Singapore have a different period end of 31 December to the Group due to local compliance reasons. There are
no restrictions on the ability of associates to transfer funds to the Group in the form of cash dividends, or to repay loans or advances made by the
entity. The debt of Nando's Chickenland Malaysia has been guaranteed by Nando's Group Holdings Limited. For further details on the impairment in
equity accounted investees, please refer to Note 20 of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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6 Cash and cash equivalents
2021 2020
£'000s £'000s
Cash and cash equivalents 63,153 25,155
7 Debtors
2021 2020
Amounts falling due within one year £'000s £'000s
Loans due from inter-group undertakings 104,719 71,643
Debtors due from inter-group undertakings ) 13,440 4,465
Other debtors ' 15 13
Prepayments . 1
118,174 76,122
Amounts falling due more than one year .
Loans due from intergroup undertakings (interest 8.50%) 180,625 168,457
. 180,625 168,457

The debtors balance due within one year includes carried forward group relief of £5,074k (2020: £4,465k) with Nando's Chickenland Limited and
receivable of £8,400k (2020: £0k) from Nando's Services (Pty) Limited. .
Included within loans due from inter-group undertakings is £40,370k (2020: £34,970k) due from Nando's Chickenland Canada Inc which is
repayable in 2021. The remainder of the loans with the Company's subsidiaries, being £91,412k (2020: £62,471k), bear no interest, are repayable
on demand and are unsecured. Provisions of £27,063k (2020: £25,800k) were held against the loans due from inter-group undertakings.

Amounts owed from Group undertakings due more than one year are due from Nando's Limited, upon which interest is charged at 8.5%. The

amount of interest accrued for the period is £10,368k (2020: £10,172k). This loan facility is repayable in 2022 and is unsecured. Included in the
carrying value of total inter-group loans is accrued interest receivable of £61,082k (2019: £50,910k).

The below table summarises. the movement on group undertakings:

Loans to Other Total
group
Amounts due from inter-group undertakings undertakings
' £'000s £'000s £'000s
Cost and Net book value
As at 23 February 2020 240,100 4,465 244,565
Additions . 36,139 8,990 45,129
interest Accrued 10,368 - 10,368
Increase in provision against intercompany loans (1,263) - (1,263)
As at 28 February 2021 285,344 13,455 298,799
8 Creditors
2021 2020
Current £'000s £'000s
Creditors due to third parties (514) (2,565)
Creditors due to inter-group parties (79,985) (68,373)
Loans due to related parties - -
Non-Current
Loans due to related parties (296,488) (273,949)
(376,987) (344,887)
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8 Creditors (continued)

The loans due to related parties and inter-group undertakings are interest bearing loans and borrowings which are summarised in the table of terms
and conditions below:

. Nominal
Year of interest Carrying
Currency maturity rate Face value amount Face value Carrying amount

2021 2021 2020 2020

Inter-group loans £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s
On 2.5%+

Nando's Group Limited GBP demand LIBOR 58,782 79,985 58,782 68,373
Related Party loans
Yellowwoods Treasury 2
SARL GBP 2019 7.50% - - - -
Yellowwoods Treasury 2
SARL GBP 2022 8.00% 120,000 187,101 120,000 173,098
Yellowwoods Treasury 2
SARL GBP 2024 8.25% 46,618 70,811 46,618 65,343
Yellowwoods Treasury 2
SARL GBP 2027 8.50% 26,000 38,576 26,000 35,508

251,400 376,473 251,400 342,322

This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Company's interest bearing loans and borrowings, which are measured at
amortised cost. Face value of debt represents amounts initially borrowed, while the carrying value of debt includes accrued interest where the
terms of the instrument require repayment of interest at the end of the loan term plus any amortised upfront costs of the loan.

9 Share Capital

2021 2020
£'000s £'000s
Authorised Share Capital
77,777,778 (2020: 50,000,000) ordinary shares of £3.60 (2020: £3.60) each 280,000 180,000
Nil (2020: 10,777,537) ordinary B shares of £0.001 each - 11
280,000 180,011
Issued and fully paid for
77,777,778 (2020: 50,000,000) ordinary shares of £3.60 (2020: £3.60) each 280,000 180,000
Nil (2020: 10,240,864) ordinary B shares of £0.001 each - 10
280,000 180,010
Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding
Opening balance at beginning of current period 50,010 180,010
Share consolidation of nil shares (2020: 130,000,000) - (130,000)
Disposal of ordinary B shares (2020: nil) (10) -
Shares issued 27,777,778 (2020: nil) 27,778 -
Closing balance at end of current period 77,778 50,010

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of
the Company.

Ordinary B shares are held by employees under share based scheme. The holders of ordinary B shares are not entitled to receive any income or
capital untif the hurdle amount per share has been reached in respect of that ordinary B Share, the detail relating to the hurdle amount is detailed in
Note 27. The transfer of these shares is at the discretion of the Directors of the Company. The scheme was closed during the year. All the shares
were redeemed as the scheme did not pay out.

During the prior year, the 180,000,000 ‘A’ shares in issue were consolidated into 50,000,000 'A’ shares (a ratio of 3.6 to 1). During the current year
the Company issued 27,777,778 ordinary shares of £3.60 each to its immediate parent L Perlman SECS, settled in cash.
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10 Share based payments
The Company had formed an employee share scheme in 2017 which was designed to remunerate employees with shares in the Company.

The Group Partnership scheme was deemed to be equity settled, therefore the fair value of amounts payable to the employees is recognised as an
expense in the employing company with a corresponding increase in equity to represent the contribution received.

Under the employee share scheme the employees held the shares immediately on award, but there was a designated compulsory holding period
running from November 2016 to November 2020, during which employees waived their voting and dividend rights in respect of their shares and
may not transfer, charge or otherwise dispose of their shares without consent of the Company. The shares granted to employees under the scheme
would have vest under performance related criteria as well as individual personal targets; if they did not vest, then they would be returned to the -
Company.

The Group retained the beneficial rights to the unvested shares held by employees. As the shares are not publicly traded and therefore cannot be

easily realised, a separate arrangement had been put into place between the employees and L Perlman SECS, which would have acquired the
shares after vesting under a put and call. The acquisition of the shares by L Perlman SECS would have been settled in cash.

Shares in issue to the employees of Nando's Group Holdings Limited's subsidiaries:

2021 2020

Shares Shares

Shares at beginning of the period 10,240,964 10,240,964
B1 shares issued during the period - -
B2 shares issued during the period - -
B3 shares issued during the period - -
Redeemed during the period (10,240,964) -

Outstanding shares at end of the period - 10,240,964

Measurement of fair values

The fair value of the B Shares has been measured using the Monte Carlo valuation model. Service and non market performance conditions
attached to the arrangements were not taken into account in measuring fair value. The inputs used in the measurement of the fair values at grant
date of the B Shares were as follows:

Grant Date Grant Date
17 January 2018 16 November
Fair value (£) 1.13 1.04
Share price (£) 11.16 10.77
Hurdle (Exercise price) (£) 12.26 12.26
Capped value (average) (£) 16.10 16.10
Expected average exercise date 3.7 years 4.0 years
Expected maximum term 4.7 years 5.0 years
Risk free rate 0.87% 0.54%
Expected volatility 30% 30%
Expense recognised in profit and loss in relation to Group Partnership Scheme:

2021 2020

£'000s £'000s

Share-based payment expense . 161 (48)

Due to the mandatory holding period, no shares were exercisable at the end of the period. These share based payment schemes have been
recognised in accordance with IFRS 2 and the accounting policy described in 2.12. The scheme was closed during the year. All the shares were
redeemed as the scheme did not pay out.

11 Commitments and contingencies
As per note 19 of the consolidated accounts, Nando’s Group Holdings Limited has taken the audit exemption for a number of subsidiaries by virtue
of s479A of the Companies Act. A Parent Company guarantee has been provided for these entities under s479C of the Companies Act.

12 Related party transactions
Nando’s Group Holding's Limited is a subsidiary of L Perlman SECS which is the ultimate parent and controlling party, incorporated in Luxembourg
and conducts business from 39 avenue Monterey, L-2163, Luxembourg. No consolidated accounts of this group are available.

The largest group in which the results of the group are consolidated is that headed by Nando’s Group Holding’s Limited. No other group financial
statements include the results of Nando’s Group Holding's Limited.

The Group has identified the following refated parties, which have been disclosed accordingly;
Yellowwoods Treasury: Yellowwoods Treasury 2 SARL is a related party to the group by virtue of the two parties having common directors.
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12 Related party transactions (continued)
The company have the following significant related party transactions:

Deep Discounted Bonds

The Company have issued deep discounted bonds to Yellowwoods Treasury totalling £296,488k (2020: £273,949k). Included in the carrying value
of the DDB's in note 8 is accrued interest payable of £103,870k (2019: £81,843k ) in the Company. The Company have incurred interest expense
on the deep discounted bonds of £22,539k (2020 £22,408k). The details and terms of the deep discounted bonds are disclosed in note 8.

13 Subsequent events

Loans to Subsidiaries

Subsequent to the year end, the Company has extended further loans to its subsidiaries. The total value of the significant loans which have been
extended to subsidiaries is £16,840k up to the date of approval of these financial statements. This increase in loans receivable is a non-adjusting
event after the balance sheet date. :

Capital Contributions to Subsidiaries

Subsequent to the year end, the Company has contributed capital to its subsidiaries. The total value of the capital contributions extended to the
subsidiaries is £7,790k up to the date of approval of these financial statements. In addition, loans due from subsidiaries of £48,035k were converted
through the issue of shares resulting in an increase in investment in subsidiaries. This increase in capital is a non-adjusting event after the balance
sheet date.
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